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Radice Kaaitan Landied stands tall amansst the key plavers of the Indian aloobey
industey tday.The company entered the world of WML in 1998, Through constast
innovalion and tapping on imminent business opportundiss posed by the IMFL
sepment, the company has been 2ble % achieve sutstanding pregress. The compasy
has established its niche as 4 lsadng corerate araamization or 2 global seale and
gxpanding into newer geographies has shvays boen o part of its nore vision.

Harked by a million case success within the first year of s launch - 8PM was the first
brand baunched by Radicn Khaitan. The company took s nad laap by harping on to
the *prerugmisatios’ slratesy. which took off with the launch of “Magic Mosments’
wodka in 7095, and waw great suncess. Beplicating the same slategy Radico ¥haitan
expandad s product portfolio i the sremium sategery with favoured versisns of
Magic Moments vadie cafied ‘Magic Moments Remi', Morpheus Brandy, M2 Verve
Vodka. 87 Verue reif widks and After Dark,

Qisality and inasvation have always been a prosy for Redico Khaitan. The cempany
fauached i first premisr beand “Magic Momests' in a frosted boitie with 2 uniyue
giritar shaned glass window and direct prinfing on the botile, features that de not ewst
in any Indian brand. Morpheus brandy is packaged in an sverted goblet shaped bottle
with a Guala’ cap. 3 fest of its ind innovation to be done in India. Alsa, its frst beand
8P has indergone a makeover from haing molasses to prain based whisky, which
was an offeriag of first of s kind in that segment, (wing to the supenor quatdy and
focus 0n innevative offerings, many produsts of Radico Khaitan have recsived honours
aadl accolades 1n bofh indis and abroad.

White expanding its produst sortiolic and presence 1n fhe indian market. Radice
ihaitan also centinwed to fostering chobal ties. The company achiexsd & mifestane i
067, after scovi & successtit collaberation for imparting, distribating and
marketing of Gari Rosst - The no ] hottled table wise brand in the world from e
house of Ernnst & Jubio Gallo, Caiiforaia, the arzast family owned winery in He warld,

Having 1aid a strenp foundation of global ties and exporis in the fast few years, Radico
Khaitan i growing at 4 very healthy pace The company gained strength from Hhe
graad ssccess of its produsts in the fadien market which became 4 care support
system that briggered the company’s plobal expansion, Many brands from the straddle
of Radico are now avadable in more than 50 countries world-wide and are heing
aapzeciated and consumed fut only by the ndian Diaspera bt also by te lovals. The
company 5 row focesing on ncreasing s presence in a nurber of deveinped
matkets in Amesica and Asta Pacifi. Howewer, the company plans to facus on
gremtumisation of pioy aineg with devefoning new praducts 1o meet the local
asprations and requirements. vestnants will continue in brand buifding as well as
pENIAg LD newer Coitries.
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275ml




Thers's awild bread oul there! Wailng ts paunce
aa the unuseal Willng 1o on that exdra mile.
i ssly to ok the Doneg ot of then
s of nenesrionnists new have
their fel. Geah 2 push of raw adrenaiime
Geah an Electra. A world of hvely effervescence
i 3 fierce yob sublime premmem favours
{heent Orange, Appletini and Cosmopolian)
& many mors I foilow. Radicn ¥haitan's latest
offerap is tnple distilled & triple filtersd with
raron asd platinam filters. Kseping ke spirit
of innovation alive, s 8% vodia infused

drink comes withz premans ring pll off cap,
slowing Doredsi o flaveurks! ssaapeSiun the

worid with your daring mackisme, chansma and
tzaduilerated sscapades.



MOMENTS
Vodka

SINCE 1961

GRAND GOLY
QUALITY
AWARD

'd

Magic Moments : Zing up Life

What better way o 2 up fife than Magic Momends. Iadza's largest seils e points was lainched with an infernalional paskaping,
enablirg the sramiun: wodka to hacame a rage svermight. Prodused from Lhe firest g § [iple distisled srocess is a mark of absalute gurity, Ading
54t the razzmatazz is an exciting array o1 fiavours Ihat make & smooth: a5 silk the spirit o Magic Moments 55 21l about Believiag in Cesatety, exgatlance
and wirking with the lazders of costomporary Suitirs Ro wonder s avazing rand of vadka is & nailionaire brand of Radics Hhailau and hag won mary

covelad taurels for the orgaizativn, inciuding the Gold medal for 4 cansecutive years in s Manda selection,




SINCE 1961

GRAND GOLT

QUALLTY
AWARD
»

Spirit of France captured in a Goblet

=3 4l fropica:
[z ofdls

re's Aways e spivt af Prance. Conlaining the texture of wam so 3t 50 i
wresisiinle. Having aciiessd a gold medal at the prestigious Mond s Asard 2015 4 {akiag Ao

ihe lacgest selling arameum brandy, Mornneus has became a ieadey i i1s segmex
wilh our pali : 2 perfackinn seems bn B an easy tagk.
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Aath Ke Thaath
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B the finest quality g
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Old Admiral

Hrandy

For Real Men Only

(i, Adiriral is 4 speadid drandy for real men of fongur Saveur a slimulating, rich Tend of its fs laste and incredibly <ich seasatwons. A milipagirg
case beard for Fadicg. s olassi deauty is  testament of 4 royal tast and 2 pession b anjoy te good things i Hife, DI Admarat brandy 'S on an
ercaptianal growdh cures year aller vear aad s corsistent taste and Fing aroma =5 s Rat el nign adimies te taste Hiey ahvays desied.
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CONTESSA

XXX Bum

5

for the Man of Courage

£ straddle of Radico Khadan. Lauched 1e the regaiar pnce point segmenl. Seilessa is today the mast
ghest seffiag Rum b 2 Delence segmenl with 2 257 market share. The brand Ras heer wianng accsiades at internationsd Awazd
:hg @ Selver medal al Monde Setactisn 2008 and Bionps ndal o internatonai Wine ond Smrd Comaatilion in 2007 for s guality, After o3
remarkalie success and posulanty o Inda, Radico Khaitan expanded Drand's footheld is narts of Avica, Saoth Fast foa and Middi Bast and i3
iecently baing lauched i 1SA and Canada.




VERVE
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High on Verve

Fadico Shaitar enhanced its straddie of promum offenngs by launchi
smostiness wiih 4 srigus 5 stags slow THrAtor pratess 13192 Sik
fas stosessiuiiy aits L5

ks lal ;
s camed 8 niche ir the calepory, Yerve Grees Angle !
anga 128 a eitragy, cweet and zesty atoma of fresh and tige
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Dear Shareholders,

- Radico Khaitan started its journey in 1943 as a distillery and a supplier of spirits. In 1998, we started the

launch. Always ahead of the curve, we have been able to build the highly reputable brand equity and
product portfolio that we have today. Radico Khaitan believes in its strong values, rich heritage,

commitment to consumer satisfaction and culture of innovation. These remain the key pillars of our .-~

strength and foundation for future growth.

The last couple of years have been challenging for the Indian economy which has also impacted the

experienced early signs of a recovery due to lower inflation and government reforms but the

thé changing macro environment will benefit us in the coming years.

" The long-term outlook of the sector is very attractive and even more so now with the changing consumer
preferences toward higher quality products. We are one of the pioneers to identify this industry trend and
made early investments in premium brands such as Magic Moments vodka and Morpheus brandy. The

success of our strategy is evident from the ever increasing share of our premium category brands in our

overall product mix.

it gives me immense pleasure that our premium brands, in particular Magic Moments and Morpheus,

institute for Quality Selection) 2015 awards, Magic Moments Remix Lemongrass & Ginger, and Magic

; : Gold award.

Despite the challenging operating environment, we reported a stable financial performance for the fiscal
year 2015. We believe that this difficult operating environment is a short term challenge and we are well
positioned for the anticipated upturn in the industry. Input costs, which have been increasing over the last
couple of years, are believed to have peaked, in particular ENA {Extra Neutral Alcohol) prices. We expect
the ENA prices to stabilise at these levels in the near term. With the expected recovery in the operating
environment, we are confident that our financial and operating performance will improve significantly in

%% our balance sheet further.

,' - We are focused on futurein high spirits as we prepare for the next exciting phase of growth in the years to
come. Thank you for your ongoing support and we look forward to a bright future of your Company.

High Spirits Future Focus

Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chairman & Managing Director

‘_branded IMFL business with the launch of 8 PM whisky which became a millionaire brand shortly after its ~

: domestic spirits industry. The economic slowdown coupled with higher input costs and increasing duties -
" & taxes in several states continued to impact the spirits industry. During FY2015, the Indian economy

consumption demand at ground level did not show signs of any significantimprovement. We believe that 5

. continue to win accolades for their superior quality. These awards are a testament to our focus on ;?"5" ¢
" consumer satisfaction and our understanding of their preferences. In the Monde Selection (International .

Moments Remix Peach Flavoured Vodka received the Grand Gold award; and 10 other brands received the

the near term. In line with our strategy, we have begun reducing our debt levels reflecting our focus on - '
» free cash flow generation. We expect this cash flow trend to continue which will enable us to strengthen -







Dear Valued Shareholders, s “

It is my privilege to address you all through this platform. At the outset, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude for your trust and confidence in Radico Khaitan. -
A
bi

-

W

Ger .

b

Our focus on consumers and a strong pipeline of innovations helped us to further strengthen our M
portfolio and brands. This approach has enabled us to provide better quality products and variants to
suit the consumer's changing preferences and aspirations. Radico Khaitan not only enjoys a '

pfeeminent position in the domestic liquor industry, but it has also expanded its footprint in the
International market. The company has added new geographies and tied up with reputeﬂdg-"-rg

distributors for exports.

At Radico Khaitan, we strive to stay ahead of the curve with the use of most advanced technology and ; L
operational processes. We use technology solutions and analytics in our supply chain management
for accurate data capture and informed decision making. Over the years, we have also implemented a ,M
comprehensive ERP system which helps us connect with customers and better understand their j-%

: _‘-r..équirements, enhance the supply chain and make the sourcing and supply forecasts more accurate. *é‘ﬁ

During the past year, the industry dynamics were not very favorable due to significant increase inthe ;- %
input prices and very limited price increases across states. Taking into consideration the preuailiﬁ‘g' ‘
challenging environment, our operating performance was quite satisfactory. During the later part of

the year input costs started to stabilize. The benefit of the stable inputs prices coupled with
anticipated price increases will reflect in our performance over the medium term. o

We have always believed that our biggest assets are our people. Our success would not have been

: possible without the continuous support, passion and commitment of our employees. i would like to
" take this opportunity to thank each and every employee of the Radico Khaitan family for being with

us and be a part of our journey.

I, once again, thank all our shareholders, employees, customers, vendors, government and
regulatory authorities and all other stakeholders, for their continued support. We look forward to a
petter year ahead with an improved economic environment and enhanced profitability levels.

Abhishek Khaitan

Managing Director




Dear Members,

Your Directors take great pleasure in presenting their 31* Annual Report on the business and operations together
with the audited financia! statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2015.

summary of Financial Performance:

(T in Crore)
201415 2013-14
Net Sales {including sates from arrangements with ather 1,846.46 1,857.22
Distilteries / Bottling units)
Gross Profit (hefore depreciation and tax) 125.44 145,16
Profit before tax 87.13 106.41
Profit after tax 67.64 71.25
Prior period adjustments 0.00 0.00
surplus brought forward from last year 98.61 89.81
Prafit available for apprapriation 166.25 161.07
Transfer to General Reserve 50.00 50.00
Proposed Dividend and tax thereon 12.8% 12.45
Balance carried forward 88.49 98.61

Operations Review:

FY2015 was a very challenging year for the spirits industry in India. The immediate past current dynamics of the
spiritindustry and the operating environment have largely been unfavourable for the business growth. During the
year, input costs, in particular ENA prices, which have already been on an upward trend over the last couple of
years, are believed to have peaked, We believe that these were shart term challenges and Radico Khaitan is very well
positioned for the anticipated upturn in the industry. Despite these industry challenges, the Company was able to
report sustained performance during the year. Sales remained relatively flat at Rs.1,846.5 Crore compared to the
same period last year. Prestige & Above category brands registered a volume growth of 8.8% y-o-y in FYz015 to
reach 40,43 million cases. Prestige & Above category brands as a percentage of total IMFL sales increased from
18.3% in FY2014 to 20.7% in FYZ01 5. However, overall IMFL volume was 194.88 million cases in FY2015,
representing a y-o-y dedline of 4.3%. Net EBITDA margin was under pressure, standing at 9.8% in FY20153 a5
compared to 11.2% in FY2014, mainly on account of higher input costs during the year (6% ENA cost increase and
6% glass bottle cost increase). The Company's leverage profile has witnessed improvement with a 6% reductionin
total debt on y-0-y basis, FY2015 total debt standing at Rs. “849.3 Crore.

Radico Khaitan's Magic Moments vodka continued to be the market leader in the fast growing premium vodka
segment. The Company launched Verve super premium vodka in FY 2012 and its different flavours in FY 2014,
Radico Khaitan's atest offering is triple distilled and triple filtered 8% Vodka infused ready to drink {RTD) product
Electra in three fierce yet sublime premium flavour (Agent Orange, Appletini & Cosmopolitan ).

Capital Structure and Liquidity:
Share Capital
During the year under review, the Company has not issued any new shares on the exercise of stock options granted

under the Employees Stock Dption Scheme 2006. The outstanding, issued and paid-up equity shares stood at
133,038,765 shares, same as of March 31, 2014.



General Reserve

An amount of T 50 Grore has been transferred to the General Reserve out of Radico Khaitar's profit of T67.6 Crore
for the financial year ended March 31, 201 5.

Term Loan and Working Capital

As of March 31, 2015, the Company had total debt of Rs. 849.3 Crore, Cash and Cash Equivalents were Rs. 10.3
Crore resulting in Net Debt of Rs. 838.9 Crore. Total Debt consists of Rs. 412.4 Crore of Working Capital loans and
Rs. 436.9 Crore of Long Term loans, including Long Term loans maturing within 12 months of the balance sheet
date. As of March 31,2015, Radico had a conservative leverage with Debt/Equity ratio of 1.0x.

Capital Market Ratings:

The Company continued to enjoy investment grade credit rating from Credit Analysis & Research Ltd (CARE} which
has re-affirmed the rating of “CARE A+ assigned for the lang term facilities. CARE A+ or Al + ratingis conhsidered
to have adequate degree of safety regarding timely servicing of finandial obligations. Such instruments carty Tow
credit risk.

CARE has also re-affirmed the rating of "CARE A1+ assighed for the short term facilities, which is considered to

have very strong degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. Such instruments carry towest
credit risk.

Directors:

During the year the company appointed Mr. Sarvesh Srivastava as Independent Director and Mrs. Shailja Sarafas a
Non Executive Non Independent Director (Women Director) of the Company with effect from 30" May 2014.
During the year Mr. Mahendra Kumar Doogar resigned as Director of the Company with the effect from 30" May
2014,

in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing Director retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

Board Meetings:

During FY 2014-15, the Board of Directors met 4 (four) times on 30™ May 2014, 1 2" August, 2014, 1 1* November
2014 and 10" February 2015. The period between any two consecutive meetings of the Board of Directors of the
Company was not more than 120 days. The details regarding composition, number of Board Meetings heid and

attendance of the directors during Y 201 4-15 are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.
Meeting of Independent Directors
A meeting of Independent Directors was held on 10.02.201510:

1} Reviewthe performance of Non-independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

7) Review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors;

3} Assess the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of information between the Company management and
the Baard thatis necessary for the Board 1o effectively and reasonably perform their duties

Training of Independent Directors

Every new independent director of the Board attends an orientation program conducted by senior executives of the



Company. This program is intended to familiarise the new Board members about the Company's strategy, products

and offerings, operations and facilities, economic environment, organisation structure, human resource, finance,
technology, quality and risk management.

Awmajarity of the independent directors of Radico Khaitan have been associated with the Company for over 3 years
and have in depth understanding of the Company's business model, strategy and business environment. Radico
Khaitan firmly believes that a Board, which is well informed ffamiliarised with the Company, can contribute
significantlyto effectively discharge its role of trusteeshipina manner that fulfils stakeholders' expectations.

In pursuit of this, the Directors are updated on a continuing basis on developments in the corporate and industry
scenario including those pertaining to regulatory and economic environment, to enable them to take well
informed and timely decisions. The Independent directors attended interactive session from time to time to
understand the dynamics of industry.

statement on declaration given by independent directors under sub-section (6} of section 149;

All independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under
Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The Company keeps a policy of transparency and arm's length while dealing with its Independent Directors. No
transaction was entered with Independent directors in the year which could have any material pecuniary
relationship with them. Apart from sitting fee no other remuneration was given ta any of the Independent
Directors.

Board Evaluation:

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement requires that the Board shall monitor and review the Board evaluation
framework. The Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be performed by the Roard of
its own performance, various committees of the Board and that of the individua! directors. Pursuant to these
requirements, a comprehensive and structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration the
various aspects of the Board's functioning, compaosition of the Board and its Committees, culture, execution and
performance of specific duties, obligations and governance.

The performance evaluation of the Independent directors was done by the entire Board excluding the director
being evaluated, The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent directors was carried out
by the Independent directors, The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Policy on Nomination, Remuneration and Board Diversity u/s 178 sub Section 1:

The Board of Directors (the “Board”} o0 the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
{the "Committee”} has approved and adopted the Nomination, Remuneration and Board Diversity Policy (the
“Policy”) in campliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder,
and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with the stock exchanges. The policy and its objectives are available on the
Company's website www.radicokhaitan.com

Risk Management Policy:

Risk management is embedded in the operating framework of Rradico Khaitan Ltd. The Company believes that
managing fisks goes hand in hand with maximising returns. To this effect, there is a robust process in place 1o
identify key risks acrgss the Company and prioritise relevant action plans to mitigate these risks. Risk Management
framework is reviewed periodically by the Board and the Audit Committee which includes discussing the
management submissions on risks, prioritising key risks and approving action plans to mitigate such risks.

During the year, a Risk Management Policy has been approved by Audit Committee. The cbjective of this policyisto
have a well defined approach to risk. The Policy lays broad guidelines {or the appropriate authority sc asto be able
to do timely identification, assessment, and prioritisation of risks affecting the Company in the short and



foreseeable future. The Company has appointed independent Consultant to make a report on key risks and its
addressat system so as to make sure that risks are adequately compensated or mitigated. The Internal Audit
function is responsible to assist the Audit Committee on an independent basis with a full status of the risk
assessments and management,

Awards and Recognition:

During the year Radico Khaitan recsived numerous awards for its leading brands at various international events.
These awards are testament to the Company's understanding of the customer preference as well as the superior
quality of its products. Some of the awa rds received during the year were:

Award Details

Name of Brands Monde Selection International High quality
Award in 2015 Trophy Award in 2015

from Monde Selection

for having achieved Gold

for 3 consecutive years

Magic Moments Vodka Gold Gold
Magic Moments Remix Green Apple Flavoured Vodka Gold -
Magic Moments Remix Lemongrass & Grand Gold Gold

Ginger Flavoured Vodka

Marpheus Brandy Gold -

Magic Moments Remix Orange Flavoured Vodka Geld Gold
Magic Moments Remix Lemon Flavoured Vodka Gold Gold
Magic Moments Remix Chocolate Flavoured Vodka Gold Gold
Magic Moments Remix Raspberry Flavoured Vodka Gold Gold
M2 Verve Magic Moments Super Premium Vodka Gold Gold
M2 Verve Magic Moments Green Apple Gold Gold

Premium Flavoured Vodka

M2 Verve Magic Moments Orange Gold -
Premium Flavoured Vodka

Magic Moments Remix Peach Flavoured Vodka Grand Gold -
Employee Stock Option Scheme: [ESOP Scheme]

Ta provide the employees with an appertunity to share in the growth of the Company and to reinforce long term
commitment, Radico Khaitan implemented the Employees ESOP Scheme in 2006. However, during the year under
review, the Company has not issued any new shares on the exercise of stock options under the Employees Stock
Option Scheme 2006. The particulars of the options as required by SEBI {Employees Stock Option Scheme and
Employees Purchase Scheme) guidelines, 1999 are appended as annexure'A' and forms part of this report.



Dividend:

The Company has a dividend policy that balances the dual objective of appropriately rewarding its shareholders
and retaining capital to support future growth, Despite a challenging year, your Directors are pleased to
recomrend a dividend of Rs, 0.80 per equity share o 40% on face value of Rs. 2.00 each for the year ended March
31, 2015. The total dividend payout for the financial year will be Rs. 12.81 Crore including a dividend distribution
tax of Rs. 2.17 Crore. This consistent dividend payout is to demonstrate our commitment towards ouf
shareholders. The dividend is subject to approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 30.08.201 5
and will be paid to the shareholders whose names appear in the Register of Members ason 25" September 2015.

Dematerialisation:

During the year 150,885 shares of the Company constituting 0.11% of the issued and subscribed Share Capital of
the Company, were dematerialised. Around 98.0%% of the shares of the Company have now been dematerialized
a5 on March 31, 2015. Your Directors would request all the members who have not yet converted their holdings
into dematerialized form, to do so thereby facilitating trading of their shares. As per SEBI guidelines it is now
mandatory that the shares of a company arein dematerialized form for trading.

Public Deposits:

During the year under review, your Company has neither invited nor accepted any fixed deposits from the public within
the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

subsidiaries and Joint Ventures:

During the year under review, the Company has no subsidiary company. Further, during the year, Radico Glohal
Limited, Dubai ceased to be the assaciate of the Company. The company is having only one joint venture in the
name of Radico N.V. Distifleries Maharashtra Limited. Inthe joint venture company hold 36% of shareholding.

Transfer to Investor Education & Protection Fund:

Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956} mandates that companies
transfer dividend, that has been unclaimed for a period of seven years, from the unpaid dividerd account ta the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (EPF). To ensure maximurm disbursement of unclaimed dividend, the
Company sends reminders to the concerned investors, before transfer of dividend to IEPF, Unclaimed dividend has
been transferred to IEPF as per below table:

financial Year Date of Dectaration  Total Dividend Unclaimed Dividend Due Date of Transfer

of Dividend 3) as on 31-3-2015 () io IEPF account (3}

Fy 2002 17.07.2002 38,579,176.0 730,556.0 22.08,2009
FY 2003 19.07.2003 34,721,258.4 914,312.0 24.08.2010
FY 2004 17.07.2004 38,579,176.0 973,284.0 22.08.20%1
Fy 2005 16.11.2005 42,437,093.6 983,341.0 21.12.2012
Fy 2006 25.09.2006 48,223,970.0 11,35,840.0 30.10.2013
FY 2007 26.09.2007 48,223,970.0 922,432.0 05.11.2014

Key Manageriat Personnel:

During the year under review, the Company has appointed & recenfirmed following persons as KeyManageriai Personnet:

No. Name of the person Designation

1. Mr. Abhishek Khaitan Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
2. wr. K.P. Singh Whole Time Director

3. Mr, Dilip K. Banthiya Chief Financial Officer

4, Mr. Amit Manchanda Group Head - Legal & Company Secretary




Remuneration of the Directors and Employees:

The remuneration payable to each non-executive director is based on the remuneration structure as determined by
the Board, and is revised from time to time depending upon individual contribution, the Company's performance
and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

The compensation policy of Radico Khaitan is aimed to attract, retain, reward and mativate talented individusals
critical for achieving the long term strategic goals of the Company. Your Company's approach is to have
performance based compensation cutture, The compensation system should also take into account factors such as
roles, skills, competencies, experience and grade to differentiate pay appropriately on the basis of contribution,
skill and availability of talent on account of competitive rmarket forces. Details pertaining te remuneration as
required under Section 197 {12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 (1) of the Companies {Appointment
and Remuneration of Manageriat Personnel) Rules, 2014 are annexed as Annexure B with this report.

Particulars of Employees:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134, read with the Companies (Particulars of Emptloyees) Rules, 1975,
the names and other particulars of employees are to be set out in the Directors’ Report, as an addendum thereto.
During FY2015, B persons employed throughout the year, were in receipt of remuneration of Rs.60 flacs per annum
or more amounting to Rs.14.24 crores. During FY2015, the Company had 1150 employees.

The above annexure is not being sent along with this Report to the Members of the Company in line with the
provision of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013. Members wha are interested in obtaining these particulars
may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company. The aforesaid Annexure Is also
avaitable for inspection by Members at the registered Office of the Company, 21 days before the 31" Annual
general meeting and up to the date of the ensuing Annual General meeting during the business hours on working
days.

None of the employees listed in the said annexure is a relative of any director of the Company. None of the

employees hold (by himself or along with his spouse and dependent chiidren} more than two percent of the equity
shares of the Company.

The Business Responsibility Reporting as required by Clause 55 of the Listing Agreement within the Stock
Exchangesis notapplicabletoyourCompanyfortheﬂnancialyearending March 31, 2015,

Audit Report for the Year Ended FY 2015:

The observations made in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and therefore de not call for any further
comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory Auditors:

M/s. \, Sankar Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 109208W)} who are Statutory Auditors of
the Company hold offica up to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and are recommended for re-
appointment to audit the accounts of the Company for the financial year 2015-16. As required under the

provisions of Section 139 of the Companies act, 2013, Radico Khaitan has abtained written confirmation from M/s.

v, Sankar Ajyar & Co. that their appointment, if made, would be in conformity with the limits specified in the said
Section.

Cost Auditor:

As per the requirement of Central Government and pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies {Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, your Company has been
carrying out audit of cost records relating to industrial Alcohol every year.



The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of audit committee, has appointed Mr. 5.N. Balasubramanian
Cost Accountants, as cost auditor to audit the cost accounts of the Company for the financial year 2015-1 6ata
remuneration of Rs.1 lac plus service tax as applicable and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses. As required
under the Companies Act, 2013, aresolution seeking member's approval for the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditor forms part of the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

The cost audit report for FY2015 was filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on May 1, 2015.
Secretarial Audit:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Company
has appointed M/s, Tanuj Vohra & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice (C.P.No. 5253} to undertake
the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is included as Annexure — C and forms an integral
part of this Report.

Thereis no secretarial audit gualification for the year under review.
internal Control Systems and their Adequacy:

Your Company has effective internal control and risk-mitigation systems, which are constantly assessed and
\strengthened with new and revised standard operating procedures. The Company's internal control system is
commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its operations. The internal and operationat audit is
performed by M/s. Grant Thornton. The main thrust of internal audit is to test and review controls, appraisal of
risks and business processes, besides benchmarking controlswith best practices in the industry.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control systems and suggests improvements 10 strengthen the same. The Company has a robust Management
Information System, which is an integral part of the control mechanism.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, Statutory Auditors and the Business Heads are periodically apprised
of theinternal audit findings and corrective actions taken. Audit plays a key rolein providing assurance to the Board
of Directors. Significant audit observations and corrective actions taken by the management are presented to the
Audit Committee of the Board. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the internal Audit function reports to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

particulars of Loans, Guarantees of Investment by the Company:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 are given in the notes to Financial Statements.

Vigil Mechanism:

Pursuant to the requirement of section 177 {9) & {10} of the Companies Act, 2013, Radico Khaitan has adopted a
Vigil Mechanism, which allows employees of the Company to raise their concerns relating to fraud, malpractice or
any other activity or event which is against the interest of the Company or saciety as a whole, Details of complaints
received and the action taken are reviewed by the Audit Committee. The functioning of the Vigil Mechanism is
reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time.

The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
http: iwww.radicokhaitan.com/data pdfiwhistle_Mechanism_Wh istle_Blower_Policy pdf

Related Party Transactions:

All transactions entered with Related Parties for the year under review were on arm's Jength basis and in the
ordinary course of business and that the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not attracted.
and disciosure in Form ADC-2 is not required. Further, there are no material related party transactions during the



year under review with the Promoters, directors or Key Managerial Personnel. The Company hashde\re_lt_)pegi a
Related Party Transactions framework through Standard Operating Procedures for the purpose of identification
and monitoring of such transactions.

All Refated Party Transactions are placed befare the Audit Committee as also to the Board for approvail. Omnibus
approval was obtained on a quarterly basis for transactions which were of repetitive nature. Transactions entered
into pursuant to omnibus approval were regularly audited and a staterment giving details of all Related Party
Transactions were placed before the Audit Committee and Board for review and approval on a quarterly basis.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors has been uploaded on the website of
the Company at www.radicokhaitan.com. None of the directors has any pecuniary relationship of transactions vis
a-vis the Company.

Envitonmental Protection Measures Taken by the Company:

in view of the Corporate Responsibility on Environmental Protection, the Company has adopted & number of
measures to improve in the field of environment, safety and health, Measures like standard operating procedures,
training programmes for all levels of employees regarding resource conservation, housekeeping, Green Belt
development and onsite emergency plan have been taken. Sustainable living is a part of Jong-term business
strategy and your Company continuously strives to reduce our environmental footprint, while enhancing the
livelihood of millions of people across our product value chain,

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

As required under Section 134 (3} (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 {3) of the Companies {Accounts}
Rules 2014, the relevant information and data is given at “Annexure” - D.

i) thesteps taken or impact on conservation of energy;
ii) the stepstaken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy;
iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment;

The Company has continued its efforts to improve energy usage efficiencies and endeavours to identify and
evaluate the risks associated with the future energy expansion. The Company has atways been at the forefront of
new technolagy absorption and continues to enhance its position in the rapidly evolving technology driven
business. Furthermore, your Company views foreign exchange as a priarity and engages with the overseas markets
in a fair and careful manner to seek growth for the business.

Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR):

At Radico, Corporate Social Responsibility has been an intrinsic part of the long-term sustainability plan. Your
Company believes that the holistic development of the society and community is strongly linked to the conducive
business environment required for the Company's growth. Radico Khaitan believes in the concept of ‘Sacial
Inclusive Growth' and continues its efforts for the same. Your Company understands its responsibility as a
carporate citizen towards the community atlarge and has taken series of corporate social initiatives, As a part of its
initiative under the Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) drive, the Company has undertaken projects in the area of
rural development and promoting health care. These projects are in accordance with Scheduie VII of the
Companies Act, 2613 and the Company's CSR policy. The Report on CSR activities as required under Companies
{Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is set out as Annexure—E forming part of this Report.

As per the CSR Policy, the Company looks forward to spent CSR amount across the country, wherever the Company
has its piant operations. The difference between amount reguired to be spent and amount spent stands at
Rs.71.86 lacs for which the Company was not able to identify suitabie avenues in few states and also due to
extensive time spent on identifying social concerns/ locations, whichis expected to be covered in the currentyear.

There are ho material changes and commitments, if any, atfecting the financial position of the Company.



sSignificant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts;

There has besn no significant and material order passed by the Regulators or Courts that would impact the going
cancern status of the Company and its future operations.

Directors' Responsibility Statement:

To the best of knowledge and betief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your
Directors make the foliowing statement in terms of Section 134 {3) {0) of the Companies Act, 2013.

) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2015, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if
any,

i) and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015 and of the prafit of
the Company for the year ended on that date;

i) that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities.

iv} theannual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

v) that the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

vi) that the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating eftectively.

Extract of Annual Return:

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 (1} of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return s provided in Annexure - F

Management Discussion and Analysis for FY2015:

Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as required under the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges
enclosed and forms part of this report.

Corporate Governance Report for FY2015:

Report on Corporate Governance along with the certificate of statutory Auditors, Mys. V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.,
confirming compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement, forms part of the Annual Report.
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Annexure - A

Disclosure as required under SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Empioyee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999 as an March 31, 2015

A,
Particutars £50P Scheme
1 Number of options granted 3,650,000
2 ThePricing Formula First Grant — {for current eligible empioyees) whc;]
would have completed at least one year of servic

as on the date of the grant - Per Option - 30%
discount to the lower of -

{a) latest available closing price, prior to the date of
the meeting of the Compensation Committee in
which options are granted, on the Stock Exchange on
which the shares of the Company are listed and on)
which there is highest trading volume on the said
date.

{b) average of the weekly high and low prices of the
equity shares of the Company during 2 weeks
preceding the date of grant of option on the Stock
Exchanges of which the shares are listed and on
which there is highest trading volume on the said
date.

Subsequent Grants — {for future / new eligibi
employees) Per aption — 15% discount to the latest
available closing price, prior to the date of the
meeting of the Compensation Committee in which
options are granted, on the Stock Exchange on which
the shares of the Company are listed and on which)
there is highest trading volume on the said date.

3 Number of options vested 104,000
4  Number of options exercised 1,903,549
5 Total number of shares arising as a 1,903,549

result of exercise of options

& Number of options lapsed 1,540,511

7 Variationintheterms of options Not Applicable
8  Money realised by exercise of options {Rs.) 153,382,556
9  Total Number of Qptionsin force 205,940




Employee-wise details of options granted to:

(i) Senior managerial persornel
= . 0 » o

Na of options have been granted during the current year

(i) Employees who were granted, during any one year, options amounting to 5% or more of the pptions
granted during the year

Name Mo. of options granted

No of options have been granted during the current year

(i) ldentified employees who were granted optian, during any one year, equal or exceeding 1% of the|
issued capital {excluding cutstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company at the time of grant

Name No. of options granted
No of options have been granted during the current year

C. Diluted Earnings Per Share pursuant to issue of shares on exercise of options calculated in
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20
5.08
D. The impact on the profits and EPS of the fair value methad is given in the table below -
Rs.
Profit as reported 676,348,380
Add - intrinsic Value Cost 691,454
Less - Fair Value Cost 5,475,557
Profit as adjusted 671,564,277
Earning per share (Basic) as reported 5.08
£arning per share (Basic) adjusted 5.05
£arning per share (Diluted) as reported 5.08
Earning per share (Diluted) adjusted 5.05%
E. Weighted average exercise price of Opticns whose
a) | Exercise price equals market price Na options have been granted
tbYl Exercise price is greater than market price during the current year
{c)| Exercise price is less than market price
Weighted average fair value of options whose
(a)] Exercise price equals market price No options have been granted
(b)] Exercise price is greater than market price during the current year
(c)| Exercise price is less than market price
E Method and Assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted during the year:

No of options granted during the current year : NIL




Bisclosure in the Board's Report under Sec

Annexure - B

tion 197(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rute 5 (1)

of the Companies {Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

i

The Ratio of the remuneration of

each director to the median remuneration
of the employees of the Company for the
financial year 2014-15

Director's Name

Ratio to mean
rermuneration

Or. Lalit Khaitan 61.5:1
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan 58.2:1
Mr. Ashutosh Patra N.A,
Mr. K.5. Mehta N.A.
Dr. Raghupati Singhania N.A,
Mr. KR Singh 19.6:1
Mr. Sarvash Srivastava MN.A.
Mrs. Shailja Saraf N.A.

(i  The Percentage increase in remuneration of Director's/CFO/CEQ/CS/Manager % age increase
each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief name in remuneration
Exacutive Officer, Company Secretary

Dr. Lalit Khaitan, Chairman 8.6%
& Managing Director

Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, 8.17%
Managing Director

Mr. K.P. Singh, Whole Time Director 12%
i, Dilip K. Banthiya, 12%
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Amit Manchanda, 15%
Company Secretary

(i) Percentage increase in the median 9.25%
remyneration of employees in the financial
year 2014-15 compared to 2013-14

{ivy MNumber of permanent employees on As on 31.03.2015 As on 31.03.2014
the rolls of the Company 1150 1161

v} Explanation on the relationship between Total Revenue, EBITDA & PAT

average increase in remuneration and the
company performance

decreased by 58%, 11.9% & 5%
respectively while average
remuneration increased by

11.4%, High cost of living inflation
& industry level increase in the
salaries were taken into
consideration

{wi}

Comparison of the remuneration of the Key
Managerial Personnel against the
perfarmance of the Company

Total revenue, EBITDA & PAT
decreases by .58%, 11.9% & 5%
respectively while average
remuneration of KMP increases
by 11.79%.




{vii} Variation in

Details 31.03.2015

31.03.2014

Market Capitalization 1191.36 Crares

534/ 89 Croves

1937.71 Crores

Price Earning Ratic 17.62

as at the closing date

27.17

Percentage Increase / {-)3851% -

decrease of market
quotations of shares

Net worth of the 852.13 Crores

Company

812.25 Crores

(viiDAverage percentile increase in fixed salaries of
appraised Employees other than managerial
personnei

During 2013-14

During 201415

9.54

11.14

Justification for increase
with reasons for any
exceptional circumstances

Group Head ~ Legal &| 309886 | 269470

Company Secretary

(ix) Comparisan of each remuneration of the Key Name of Key Remunaration for Reason
Managerial Personnel against the performance Managerial personnel the years ended against
of the Company performance

of the
Company
31.03.201531.03.2014] % age
change
Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, | Per Month [Per Manth | B.17%
Managing Director & |3143200 | 2505600
Chief Executive Dfficen (Pedks on | (Perks on %
Actuals) | Actuals) ‘,%
My. K.P. Singh, Whole §Per Month | Per Month 12% =
Time Director 1061758 | 347997 E
Mr. Dilip K. Banthiya, |per Month leer Month | 12% 2
Chief Financiat Officer| 1326095 | 1184011 g
Mr. Amit Manchanda, § er Month {Per ponth | 15% E

directar to that of the employges who are not
directors but receive remungration in excess the
highest paid director during the year.

(X} Key parameter for any variable component of N.A.
remuneration availed by the Directors
(X Ratio of the remuneratien of the highest paid N.A.

The Board of Directors of the Company affirms that the remuneration is

as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

The statement showing the names of every employees of the campany as per Rule 5(2) forms part of Director's Report is

attached thereto.



Annexure - C

Secretarial Audit Report

For the Financial Year ended on 31" March, 2015
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Radico Khaitan Limited

CIN: L2694 1UP1983PLL027278
Bareilly Road, Rampur

Uttar Pradesh-244901

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Radico Khaitan Limited (hereinafter called “the Company").
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutery compliances and expressing our opinion thereon,

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on 31" March, 2015 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper board-processes and compiliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by Radico Khaitan Limited for the financia! year ended on 31" March, 2015 according to the

provisions of:

) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act}and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRAY) and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  TheDepositories Act, 1996 and the Reguiations and Bye-Laws framed thereunder;

iv)  The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;

(v} TheRegulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 {'SEBL Act’) :-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers}
Requlations, 2011,



(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992;

{¢} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Jssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme } Guidelines, 1999;

{e} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities )
Regulations, 2008,

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with the client;

{@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares ) Regulations, 2009;
and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
{vi) Some of the other laws specifically applicable to the Company:-
(a} Food Safetyand Standards Act, 2006 and Rules and Regulations made thereunder; and

(b) Uttar Pradesh Shops and Commercial Establishments Act, 1962 and Rules and Regulations
made thereunder.,

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Listing Agreements entered into
by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and The National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE}. However the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICS1) were not applicable to the Company for the period under review.

We further report that during the period under review the Company has substantially complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried outin
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

We further report that adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent adeqguately in advance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting. Decisions carried through by the Board do not have any
dissenting views and hence, no relevant recordings were made in the minutes book maintained for the
purpose.

We further report that there are adeguate systerns and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws
including Labour Laws and Environmental Laws and Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed
thereunder,



We further report that during the year under review the Company has made disinvestment of 89,964
Equity Shares from Radico Global Limited, 2 Company incorporated in Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai and
passed a Board Resolution in thisregard in the meeting of Board of Directors of the Company held on 30"
day of May, 2014 and in the meeting of Operations Committee on 30" March, 2015.

For Tanuj Vohra & Associates

Company Secretaries

Tanuj Vohra

Delhi, 22 May, 2015 M. No.: F5621, C.P. No.: 5253

Annexure - 1

To,

The Members,

Radico Khaitan Limited

CIN; L26941UP1983PLCO27278
Bareilly Road, Rampur

Uttar Pradesh — 244 901,

We have examined the relevant registers, records and documents maintained and made available to us
by Radico Khaitan Limited (“the Company”) for the period commencing from 1% April, 2014 to 317
March, 2015 for the issuance of Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2014-15, required to be
issued under section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for
ensuring the various compliances but the maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices we followed providea reasonable basis for our opinion and the compliance of the provisions of
Corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations is the responsibility of the management. Qur
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

for Tanuj Vohra & Associates
Company Secretaries
Tanuj Vohra
Delhi, 22 May, 2015 M. No.: F5621, C.P. No.: 5253



ANNEXURE - D

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign £xchange Earnings and Outgo:

The information under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31" March 2015 is given here below and forms
part of the Directors Report.

A.

(a)

{b)

()

(8)

Conservation of Energy:

Additional investments and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of
consumption of energy:

1, Power saving through replacement of old copper chokes with new electronic chokes.
2. Power saving through installation of timer in plant and street lights.

Impact of the measures at (a) above for reduction of energy consumption and consequent
impact on the cost of production of goods:

1. Replacement of old copper chocks with new electronic chokes into collective saving of
Rs.0.46lacs.

2. Power saving through installation of timer in plant and street lights resulted into saving of
Rs.2.32 lacs.

Steam Saving -

1. By changing the process of liquefaction of Grain from jet cooking process to no jet
cooking process (By Changing the Enzyme} we have saved about 0.30 Kg/ Litre of steam
in grain spirit production.

2. Reduction in DM water consumption for steam generation up 40% through re use of
steam condensate from distillation plant and decrease in DM water consumption in
distillation through lees recycle resulted into saving of Rs.21.1 lacs.

3. Steam saving of 0.1 KG / BLin MPWE Distillation with integrated evaporator through over
all improvement in sugar to alcohol conversion efficiency by using certain enzyme in
fermentation also increase in alcohol % in wash and optimize the process parameter of
fermentation and heat integration of distillation and integrated evaporation resulted into
saving of R5.34.6 lacs.

Technology absorption:

Process Improvements:

1. Printing plant modification on AFM-2 for size 180 ml, caps from 4 nos. to 6 nos. on each
strip and modification on AFM-1 for size 750 ml. caps from 4 nos. to 5 nos. on eachsstrip.

Benefits: Resulting into productivity improvement.



{C)  Foreign Exchange earning and outgo:

Particulars of earnings and outgo of foreign exchange are given in Notes on Accounts in Schedule
42 (i) of the accounts.

(D) Envircnment Protection:

1. Increase in Bio- Composting Area - We have increased our Big-compaosting area by
another 6 acres in order to facilitate more utilization of press mud and therefore more
consumption of effluent in press mud.

Place : New Delhi Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Date :10.08.2015 Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 00238222



ANNEXURE E

ANNUAL REPORT DETAILS OF THE CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1,

A brief cutline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs propased to be
undertzken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

The CSR Policy was approved by the Board of Directors of its meeting held on 30" May 2014 and has been
uploaded on the Company’s website. A gist of the programs that the Company can undertake under the
CSR policy is mentioned below.

The web link is http://www.radicokhaitan.com/data_pdficsr_policy.pdf

2. The Compasition of the CSR Committee:
1. Dr. Lalit Khaitan Chairman
2. Mr. K.P. $ingh Whole Time Director
3. Mr. Ashutosh Patra independent Director
4. Mrs. Shailja Saraf Non Executive Non independent Director
3. Average net profit of the Company for last three Financial Years:
'If:ciaverage Net Profit for the last three years as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013isRs.11238.65
4, Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount asinitem 3 above).
The Company is required to spend Rs.210.60 lacs towards CSR for the Financial Year 2014-15.
5. Details of CSR spent during the Financial Year:
a. Total amount spent for the Financial Year: Rs.138.74 lacs.
b. Amount unspent, if any: Rs.71.86 lacs.
c. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year detailed below:
1

3 4 5 6 7 8

Health care and Medical facilities

Medical health check | Health Ajitpur Village 104,844 Direct
up camps arganised | care & Rampur (UP)
at Ajitpur, $hadi Ki Medical




Mandaiya, Chamarva | facilities
and Panwadia

villages
2 |Annual donation to | Health Rampur {(JP} 100,000 Direct
Distt. eye relief care &
society Rampur medical
facilities
3 |Fundus Camera, Health Rampur (UP) 3,750,000 Direct
Lazer green and OCT | Care &
opticat cohenece Medical

tolograph machine | facilities
for District eye relief
Datmiya hospital

Promotion of education through skill development programs linked to employment

4  |Contribution for civil | Pramoting { Rampur, (UP) 135,600 Direct
wark in ¢ity School | Education

5 |Expenses on Skitl Ajitour Village 709,611 Direct
Computer & Sewing | develep- Rampur, (UP}
& Stitching Classes [ ments

run at Ajitpur programs
linked to
empioy-
ment
6 |Fees of Ch.Ramesh skill Ajitpur Village 800,000 Direct
Chand Charitable develop- | Rampur, (UP)
Trust ,GBD for ments

employment linked | programs
training program on | linked to
skilled development § employ-
for local unemployed | ment

youth
7 |Construction of Skil§ Panwadia 940,566 Direct
skill development develop- village
centre building at ments Rampur, (UP}
Panwaria village programs
induding civil work | linked to
and other employ-
infrastructure ment

Environment

8 |Plantation at Ajitpur | Environ- Rampur (UP) 71575 Direct
Village and donation | ment
of paryawaran smati
Ajitpur




Safe Drinking water facilities & sanitation

Prix Gold Badminton
Championship 2015
{around 300 players

9 |Cold drinking water | Safe Judges Road, 21,000 Direct
facilities at public drinking Rampur {(UP)
ptaces Water
10 {Instalied hand Pumps} Safe Ajitpur Village 471,666 Direct
at rural areas at drinking Rampur (UP)
Ajitpur for fresh Water
drinking water
11 [Toilets 06 nos. Rural/ Rampur {(UF) 59,370 Direct
constructed at Cultural
Kushtha Ashram. Develop-
ment
Charitable Trust
12 {Veer Khalsa Seva Rural/ Rampur (UP} 21,600 Direct
Samiti Rampur Cultural
Develop-
ment
13 {Shti Murli Manav Rura¥/ Rampur (UP} 31,000 Direct
Sewa Sanstha {Regd.)] Cultural
for fooding to poors. | Develop-
ment
Rural /Cultural development
14 [Krishi exhibition Rural/ Panwadia 826,000 Direct
sponsorship for Cuftural Village
development of rural | Develop- Rampur (UP)
& handicraft ment
industries.
15 |Civil work at Guasala | Rural / Rampur (LiP) 163,263 Direct
Culturai
Develop-
ment
16 {Temporary Cottages | Rural/ Local villages 3,028,102 Direct
for poor people in Cultural in Rampur
rural areas. Develop- | Sub-Divisions
ment
Promotion of sports activities in rural areas
17 |Paid ta U.P. Sports Championship 200,000 Direct
Badminton Academy,| promotion | will be held at
Syed Modi in ruyal Lucknow
International, Grand | areas
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will participate from
different countries

implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the

Company.

Chairman & Managing Director

Chairman of C5R Committee

18 |Contribution & Sports Rampur {UP} 422,000 Direct
expenses for Half promotion
Marathon in rural
areas
19 |Track suits given to | Sports Rampur (UP) 19,500 Direct
football players at promotion
District level in rural
areas
Total 11,874,497| 11,874,497 | 11,874,497
Benefits to armed forces widows and their dependents
20 |Expenses incurred Armed New Delhi 2,000,000 Direct
at Defence Marketing| forces
Division for welfare | widows
of widows, and their
rehabilitation of dependent
defence people and
take care of special
children
Total 2,000,000 2,000,000
21 |Health Care Reengus, 7,186,000 - - -
Medical & Bahadurgarh,
Educational Timmapur,
expenditure Bajpur
Grand Totat 21,060,497 | 13,874,497 | 13,874,797
6. The Company has provided the reasons for not spending the amount of 2% of average net profit in its
Board report.
7. The Chairman of the CSR Committee hereby confirms on behalf of the CSR Committee that the



ANNEXURE - F
Form Neo, MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31" March 2015
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

)} CIN: L26941UP1983PLC027278
i) Registration Date: 21.07,1983
iii) Narne of the Company: Radico Khaitan Limited
w) Category/ Sub-Category of the Company: Public Limited Company
v) Address of the Registered office and contact details:

Radico Khaitan Limited

Bareilly Road, Rampur—244 901 (U.P).
wi) Whether listed company: Yes

vit) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Registered Office: Delhi Office:

M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Karvy Selenium Tower-B, 305, New Delhi House

PlotNo. 31 & 32, Gachi Bawli, 27, Barakhamba Road

Financial District, Manakramguda, Serelingampally, Connaught Place

Hyderabad-500 032, Telangana New Delhi-110001.

Toll Free Mo.18 00 3454 001 Telephone No.011-43681700

Telephone np. 040-67162222 FaxNo.011-43681710.

Fax No.040-23001153

Email Id: einward.ris@karvy.com

Ii. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Name and Description NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of

of main products / services service the company

1. Manrufacturing of Alcchol & 1101 98.5%
Alcoholic products




. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

1. Radico NV Distilleries CIN No. Associate 36% 2 {6)
Maharashtra Limited U15429MH2000PLC193208
D-192 to D-195,
MIDC Shendra Five
Star Industrial Area,
Aurangabad-431 201

V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Break up as percentage of Total Equity)

1) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the Beginning of the year No. of Shares hetd at the end of the year * Change
(As on 01.04.2014) (As an 31,03.2015) during
the year
Demat “Physical | Total % of total Demat Physical | Total % of total
Ng. of Mo, of
shares shares
A, Promoters
{1} Indian
(&) Individualf HUF 412210 J¢] 412210 .31 42210 0 412210 0.31 1]
{b) Central Gowt g 0 ¢ ') Q 0 I ¢ 0
{¢) State Govt {s) 0 0 0 1] 1] 0 1] 0 0
(d) Bodies Corporate 53417608 4] 53417608 40.1% 53417608 ] 53417608 40.15 0
fe} Banks / FI 1] i [1] [} 0 0 1] 0 [§]
{fy Any Other O G 0 0 i} L] 0 1] 0
sub total (A} {1): 53820818 0 53829818 A0.4% 53829518 1] 53829818 40.46 L
2] Fareign
{a} NRI individuals 0 0 0 0 0 [ 0 0 0
{bY Other individuals o [§ ] 0 1] 1] i ] 1]
{c¥ Bodies Corporate [{ [} ] 0 [} [} 0 [} 0
{dV Banks { FI 0 0 [+ [1] [ 0 0 [1] [1]
le) Any other [i] 0 [F] i} [§] [§] 1] [1] g
Sub totallA] T2): 0 [ [ [ ] [] [} [1] [
Total sharehalding of 53829818 a 53829318 40.46 53829818 0 53829818 40.4¢ 1]
Promaoter
A= (A 1)+ (A)2)
B. Public Sharcholding
(%} Institutions
{a) Mutual funds/ UTi 10777016 3565 19786581 2.10 13760447 3565 13764012 10.35 -2.25
(b} Banks / Fl 149737 2665 152402 0.11 193730 1665 1896395 015 iR
{c} Central Govt.{s) 0 9 ] [ 0 4] O ¢ 0
{d) State Govt.(s) 1] 31620 31620 0.02 4] 31620 31620 0.02 1]
{e} Wenture Capital 1] ] 1] 0 o 4] 1] 0 1]
Funds
i) bnsurance 50060 ¢} 50000 0.04 il v} Q [ 0.04
Compares
{a) Fls 30125490 Q 30129480 212,65 14592645 1] 24552645 15.49 4.16
th} Foreign Venture ] o o 1] o 1] o o 1]
Capital Funds
(i) Others {specify) 0 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B} (1} 41106243 37850 { 41144093 30.93 38546822 | 17850 3BSB4672 25,00 1.93
2. Non-Institutions
(a) Bodins Corporate
tit Indian 15430136 25605 15455241 11.62 12789127 25325 12814452 4.63 1.89
(it} Overseas 0 0 0 1] 0 1] 0 0 0
(b} Individuals
{11 Individual 10058068 2357133] 1241520 9.33 14323001 2224508 ] 16547509 12.44 -3
shareholders
holding normninak
sharg capital
upto Rs.1 lakh.




T Indwidual 9150055 0 9130059 .91 7031238 |0 7031238 529 162
shareholders
holding naminal
share capital
in excess of
Rs.1 lakh
{€) Others (specify)
i}_Clearing Members [} [ 0 o 218896 [ 218896 0,16 016
i) Foreign Bodies [ o [ [} 2604000 | © 2604000 1.96 1,96
iii} Non Resident GOGE1E 380735 | 987551 .74 1045425 | 362755 | 1408180 1.06 0.3
indians
) Directors & 16302 0 16302 0.01 0 [V o 0 0.01
Retatives
Sub-total (B)(2):- 35301361 | 2763473 38064854 | 28.61 38011687 | 2612588] 40624275 30.54 -1.93
Total Public Shareholding 76407624 7801323] 70208347 | 59.54 76558500 | 2650438] 79208947 5954 [
{B)=(B) (1)={B) (2
C. Shares held by 1] 4] v} 1] 0 1] il [} 0
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total {A+B+0) 130237442 | 280%323 133033765 { 100.00 130386327 | 2650438| 132038765 | 100.00
(i) Shareholding of Promoters
Si. | Sharehoiders Name shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end % change
Mo, of the year 01.04.2014 of the year 31.03.2015 in
rharehuld-
ing during
[the year
Na. of % of tota! | % of Shares No. of o, of total { % of Shares
Shares Shares of | Pledged/ Shares Shares of | Pledged/
the encumbered the encumbered
Company | to total shares Company | to totai shares
1 Lalit Kumar Khaitan 234295 0.18 0 234295 0.18 0 0
2 Lalit Kurnar Khaitan HUF | 41850 0.03 0 41850 0.03 0 y;
3 Abhishek Khaitan 86065 0.06 0 26065 0.06 0 0
4 Deepshikha Khaitan 50000 0.04 0 50000 0.04 0 0
5. Shailaja Finance Lid. 11491087 B.54 0.26 11491087 | 8.64 2.14 0
B. Sapphire Intrex Ltd 33888011 25.47 6.13 33888011 | 25.47 333 0
7 Classic Fintrex Pvt. Ltd, | 2576100 1.94 1y 2576100 1.94 g 0
a Elkay Fiscal 66000 0.05 0 66000 0.G5 0 1]
Services Pvt.Ltd,
9 Abhishek Fiscal 99050 0.07 0 99050 0.07 0 G
Services Pvt. itd.
10.] Rampur International Ltd] 5254085 3.95 2,47 5254085 3.95 247 0
11.] Smita Fiscat Pvt, Ltd. 43275 0.03 0 43275 0.03 0 Y]
Total 538283818 40.46 8.86 53829818 | 40.46 7.94 0
{iii} Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
SI. | Particuiars Shareholding at the Cumnulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
Mo, of Shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of shares of
the Company the Company
1. NO CHANGE IN N.A, N.A. N.A. N.A.
PROMOTERS HOLDING




(iv)

Sharcholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs

Balance

and ADRs):
8l.| Name of No. of Shares % of total Date Increase / | Cumulative Shareholding
Noy Share Holder at the beginning shares of Decrease | during the Year
of the year / end the in share
of the year Company holding *
Reason |No. of % of total
Shares shares of the
Company
HSBC Global 9980624 7.50 01.04.2014 Opening | 9980624 | 7.50
lnvestment Funds Balance
9980624 7.50 31.63.2015 Closing | 9980624 | 7.50
Balance
Reliance Capital 8305811 6.24 01.04.2014 Opening | 8305811 | 6.24
Trustee Co. Ltd Balance
06.06.2014 ] (400000} | Sale
18.07.2014 | (196000) | Sake
05.00.2014 | {350000) | Sale
23.01.2015 § 175700 Purchase
30.01.2015 { 270000 Purchase
06.02.2015 | 579400 Purchase
13.02.2015 | 549900 Purchase
27.02.2015 | 243000 Purchase
06.03.2015 | 557000 Purchase
13.03.2015 | (500000} Sale
13.03.2015 | 133000 Purchase
20.03.2015 { 150000 Purchase
11296871 8.49 31.03.2015 Closing | 11296871 B.4%9
Balance
. |Smallcap World 3600000 Al 01.04.2014 Opening | 3600000 | 2.71
Fund INC Balance
09.05.2014 | (2369186} | Sale
16.05.2014 | {155666) Sale
23.05.2014 | (1361813} Sale
30.05.2014 { (1085599 | Sale
06.06.2014 | {318514) Sale
13.06.2014 | (299222} | Sale
31.03.2015 Closing |0 [¢]
Balance
. |Ashish Bhawan 3234195 2.43 01.04.2014 Opening [ 3234195 | 2.43
Balance
10.10.2014 | 145081 Purchase
31.10.2014 | 115737 Purchase
14.11.2014 { 225429 Purchase
16,01.2015 | 860603 Purchase
23.01.2015 | 149387 Purchase
4934195 £ 31.03.2015 Closing | 4934195 | 3.71
Baianca
. |Reliance Life 2851164 214 01.04.2014 Opening | 2851164 | 2.14
tnsurance Cao, Lid. Balance
06.06.2014 | 120332 Purchase
30.06.2014 | (274204; Sale
14.11.20%14 { (112944) Sale
06.03.2015 | {214000) Sale
1686998 1.27 31.03.2015 Closing 1686998 | 1.27




6. [Morgan Stanley 2791003 2.10 01.04,2014 Opening [2791003 | 2.10

Asia Singapore Pte 8alance
19.12.2014 | (2718485) | Sale
205990 0.15 31.63.2015 Closing | 205990 0.15
Balance
7. |BNP Paribas 2660081 2.00 01.04.2014 Opening | 2660081 | 2.00
Arbitrage Balance

13.06,2014 | 275000 Purchase

18.07.2014 | (162658) | Sale

25,07.2014 [ {(112342) | Sale

2829986 213 31.03.2015 Closing |2829986 | 2.13
Balance

8. |Jhuihunwala 1897000 1.90 01.04,2014 Opening | 1997000 | 1.90
Rakesh Radheshyam Balance

02.05.2014 ] (500000 | Sale

09.05.2014 | (496000) | Sale

20.08.2014 | (243246) | Sale

05.09.2014 § (756754) | Sale

31.03.2015 Cliosing |0 0

Balance

9. fAcacia Partners LP 1512600 1.14 01.04.2014 Opening [ 1512000 | 1.14
Balance

1512000 1.14 31.03.2015 Closing 1512000 | 1.14
Balance

10 Bajaj Alfianze Life 1463124 1.1¢ 01.04.2014 Opening | 1463124 | 1.10
Insurance Co. Ltd Balance

25.04.2014 | 343070 Purchase

02.05.2014 { 256000 Purchase

30.05.2014_ | 100000 | Purchase

13.06.2014 | 362260 Purchase

20.06.2014 1 332900 Pyrchase

2874500 2,34 31.03.2015 Closing [2974500 | 2.24
Balance

* [ncrease / Decrease in Shareholding one lac and above.

v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
5l.| Shareholding of each Directors Sharehelding at the Cumuliative Shareholding
and each Key Managerial Personnel | beginning of the year during the year
No. of Shares | % of total No. of Shares | % of total
| shares of the shares of the
Company Company
1. Dr. Lalit Kumar Khaitan
At the beginning of the year 234295 0.18 234295 0.18
Date wise increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasans for - - - -
increase / decrease
{e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity etc.}:
At the end of the year 234295 0.18 234295 0.18




Mr. Abhishek Khaitan

At the beginning of the year
Date wise increase / Decrease
in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease

(e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat eguity etc.):
At the end of the year

86065

86065

0.06

0.06

B&065

86065

0.06

0.06

Dr. Raghupati Singhania

At the beginning of the year
Date wise increase /
Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /
decrease

(e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year

Myr. Karna Singh Mehta

At the beginning of the year
Date wise increase / Decrease
in Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase / decrease

{e.q. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year

1500

1500

0.001

0.001

1500

0.001

0.001

0.001

Mr. Ashutosh Patra

At the beginning of the year

Date wise increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease

(e.g. altotment / transfer / bonus /
sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year

Mr. Sarvesh Srivastava

At the beginning of the year

Date wise increase { Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease

(e.q. allotment / transfer / bonus /
sweat equity etc.):

At the end of the year




7. Mrs. Shailia Saraf

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
spedfying the reasons for - - - -
increase / decrease
{e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus /
sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 0 0 0 0
8 Mr. K P Singh
At the beginning of the year 2891 0.002 2891 0.002
Purchase of shares on 11.04.2074 1000 0.00 1600 0.00
Sale of shares on 25.04.2014 3000 0.002 3000 0.002
At the end of the year 891 0.00 801 0.00
9. Mr. Dilip Kumar Banthiya
At the beginning of the year 54721 0.04 54721 0.04
Sale of shares on 13.06.2014 7000 0.005 7600 0.005
Sale of shares on 20.06.2014 150060 0.01 15000 0.0%
At the end of the year 32721 0.02 32721 0.02
10 Mr. Amit Manchanda
At the beginning of the year 4 0.0C 4 0.00
Sale of shares on 10.10.2014 4 0.00 4 0.00
At the end of the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

{Rs. in lacs)

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the peginning of the

financial year

i} Principal Amount # 83,880.54 6,500.00 0.00 90,380.54
il Interest due but not paid 4.37 44,59 0.00 48.96
iii) Interest accrued but not due 323.79 0.00 0.00 323.79
Total {i+1i+iif) 84,208.70 6,544.59 0.00 90,753.29
Change in Indebtedness during they

Financial year:

Addition 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00
Reduction (-)9,954,95 {-} 1,500.00 0.00 {-)11,454.95
Net Change (-19,954.95 4,500.00 0.00 (-} 5,454.95
Indebtedness at the end of the

Financial year:

i} Principal Amount # 73,925.59 11,000.00 0.06 84,925.59
ii) Interest due but not paid 68.13 69.26 0.00 137.39
i) Interest accrued but not due 260.99 260.99
Total {i+ii+iii} 74,254.7 11,069.26 0.00 85,323.97




# Secured Loans, outstanding as on 31.03.2014 Rs.83,880.54 facs includes ECB Loan of $ 60.03 mn. valued at
Rs.60.10 per USD, and outstanding as on 31.03.2015 Rs.73,925.59 Lac includes ECB Loan of $ 53.23 mn. valued at
Rs.62.59 perUsD.

Wi,

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager.

{Rs. in lakhs)

sl.
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager-

Dr, Latlit Khaitan
Chairman &
Managing
Director

Mr. Abhishek
Khaitan,
Managing
Director

Mr. K. P. Singh

Whole
Time
Director

Total Amount

Gross salary

{a) Salary as per
provisions contained
in section 17(1} of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(¢} Profitsinliey of
salary under section
17(3) of theincome
tax Act, 1961

305.55

24.58

289.64

19.49

100.49

22.27

695.68

66.34

Stock Option

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

w

Sweat Equity

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

NLA,

Commission
- a3 % of profit
- others, specify...

N.A,

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

Others, please specify:
- Retiral benefits

52.74

49.10

9.87

nn

Total (A) (1+2+3+4+5)

382.87

358.23

132.62

873.73

Ceiling as per the Act

509.68

509.68

50%.68

1121.30

Remuneration to other directors:

sk

No.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amaount (Rs.}

Mr, Ashutash
Patra

Mr. K.5. Mehta

Singhania

D¢, Raghupati

Mr, Sarvesh
Srivastava

independent Diractors

Fee for attending board/
commitiee meetings

Commission -
Cthers, please specify

2,85,060/-

1,20,000~

1,25,000/-

2,606,000/

7,80,000~

Total {1}

2,85, 0007

1,420,000/

1,25,000/-

2,600,000/

Uther Non-Executive
Directors

Mrs. Shaija Sarat

fee for attending board /
committee meetings
Commission

Others, please specify

55,000/

55,000/~

Total (2)

55,000/

55,000/~

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Total (B}=(1+2)

8,45,000/




C. REMUNERATION 1O KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/MWTD:
{Rs. in lakhs)

sl. Particulars of Remuneration | Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount
No
Mr. Dilip Mr. Amit TOTAL
K. Banthiya, Manchanda,
Chief Financial Company
Officer Secretary
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 144.14 29.14 173.28

contained in section 17{1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b)Value of perquisites 2.67 071 3.38
u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax
Act, 1961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) of the
Income tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option N.A. N.A. N.A,
3. Sweat Equity N.A, N.A. N.A,
4, Commissicn N.A. N.A. N.A,

- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5. Others, please specify: 13.76 2.85 16.61
- Retiral Benefits
Total (C} (1+2+4+3+4+44-35) 160.57 32.70 193.27
Celling as per the Act N.A. N.A. N.A.

Vil PENALTIES /PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type | Section of Brief Details of Penalty / Authority(RD/NCLT/ | Appeal made,
the Companies|description Punishment / Court) if any {give details}
Act Compounding

fees imposed

A, COMPANY

Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS N DEFAULY

Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding




Management Discussions and Analysis for the Year 2014-15
Industry Overview
Macroeconomic Overview and the India Consumption Story

CY2014 has been another year of modest global economic growth. According to the IMF's April 2015 World
Economic Qutiook, global output grew by 3.4% in CY2014. The emerging markets and developing economies both
experienced a continued slowdown, whereas the developed economies picked up growth. The US economy
registered higher than expected growth of 4,0% (annualised) driven by an increase in consumption expenditure as
a result of steady job creation, income growth, lower oil prices and improved consumer confidence. The Eurg Area
showed early signs of recovery in Q4 CY2014 after a relatively weak start to the year supperted by lower oil prices
and higher net exports. Investment growth in China declined in the second half of CY2014 resulting in a decrease in
the economic growth ta 7.4%. The emerging market and developing ecanomies siowed down further from 5.0% in
2013 to 4.6% in CY2014 except for India. Overall, global growth is projected to remain moderate and reach 3.5%
and 3.8% in CY2015 and CY2016. In CY2015, growth is expected to be stronger in the advanced economies but
remain weak in the emerging markets.

With this backdrop, the Indian economy experienced early signs of recovery during the last fiscal year. Domestic
consumption improved due to lower inflation and an increase in purchasing power resulting in economic growth
of 7.4% compared with 6.9% in FY2014. During the year, the Consumer Price Index (CP]) gradually declined
primarily due to the fallin global crude oit prices coupled with various initiatives taken by the government to curb
inflation. However, overall manufacturing activity remained subdued as reflected by the IIP index which grew by
only 2.8% during the year.

Domestic consumption remains one of the key growth drivers of Indian economy. As per a Neilsen report, the
growth of the Indian FMCG industry was around 7% in Y2014 and is expected to grow by 10% and 12%in CY2015
and CY2016, respectively. The past three years have been challenging for India's FMCG industry. Performance was
impacted by subdued economic conditions and high inflation resulting in weaker consumer sentiment, However,
during the later part of the previous fiscal year, consumer sentiment started to recover as inflation declined, the
economy expanded and overall business confidence returned. This improvement in the overall macro-economic
scenario coupled with India's favourable demographic profile supports the attractiveness of the long term
consumer growth story.

The Indian Spirits Industry

Over the past couple of years, Indian spirits industry volume growth has seen a downward trend. This is primarily
due to the overall slowdown in the economy and increase in government duties resulting in higher retail prices.
During CY2014, IMFL volume grew by 3.6% compared to the same period last year to reach 291 million cases.
Despite this moderate volume growth, sales value increased by 7.4% compared 1o CY2013. This trend is a clear
indicator of the structural change and the ongoing transformation in the Indian spirits industry.

The spirits industry in India is experiencing a transformation towards premiumization over the past few years, The
entry of global majors into the Indian market is anticipated to provide additional impetus towards this transition,
Furthermore, rising affiuence, favorable demographics and anticipated economic growth are the key drivers of this
trend.

india is the third largest spirits market in the world, of the total spirits consumption, brown spirits which includes
whisky, brandy and rum accounted for the largest segment comprising 96% of market share by volume in CY2014.
The remaining 4% includes white spirits such as vadka and gin. Due to its ban on country liquor, South India forms
47% of the IMFL volume sales followed by 20% share from North India.

During CY2014, whisky volumes increased by 4.3%, whereas value growth was at 8.7% compared to the same
period fast year. Brandy registered a 6.8% volume growth and 11.5% value growth, White Spirits and Rum, both
registered marginal volume declines whereas the value growth for both remained relatively flat compared to the
last year.



However, within the White Spirits category, vodka continued to demonstrate growth with sales for the year at 74.5
miltion litres. Over the past five years, the overall vodka category has registered a compounded growth of 5.4%
whereas in comparison premium vodka volume has grown at 22.0%. During the same period, flavoured vodka
demonstrated a strong growth rate of 51%. Vodka is positioned as a drink for wemen and the younger generation,
which has fed to the strong volume growth. During CY2014, premium and super premium category vodka
accounted for about 51% of the total vodka volumes compared with around 33% five years ago. This trend is
expected to continue and the share of premium category vodka is anticipated toincrease further.

Sales of Spirits by Category (Volurne): 2014 Sales of Spirits by Category (Value): 2014
Whisky Brandy :
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During Fy2015, the Indian spirits industry experienced significant increases in the prices of raw materials and very
fimited price hikes to absorb the cost increases. The increase in excise duties and VAT in various states also had an
adverse impact on the volume growth, ENA (Extra Neutral Alcohol) prices increased by around £% in FY2015
compared to the same period last year.

However, the sugar production in the ongoing sugar season (ending September 2015) has been very strong and a
sugar stock surplus is expected at the end of the period. As a result, sugar prices have softened aver the last couple
of quarters and is expected to ease the input cost pressure to a certain extentin the coming year.

The Indian Spirits Industry Qutiook

IMFL consumption in India is expected to reach 3,140 million litres or 349 million cases by CY2019 representing a
CAGR of 3.7%. During the same period, IMFL consumption value is expected to grow at 5.9%. The main factors
driving alcohol consumption are the emergence of a wealthy middle class and ongoing urbanisation trends,
Growth in per capita income is expected to drive discretionary income in turn boosting demand for lifestyte
products including alcoholic beverages. Around 825 million people were int the drinking age in CY2014 and
another 82 million are likely to be added by CY2019. Following these favourable demographics, demand for
alcoholic beverages is set to rise, in particular in the premium category. Furthermore, India's per capita
consimption is low by international standards but has grown at a quicker pace in recent years (last five year CAGR
for IMFLis 7.4%). At 2.5 litres per capita per annum (Ipa), India's consumpticn is one of the lowest among the major
economies (world average: 6.2 ipa). Any increase in this consumption pattern can provide significant opportunities
given the size of the Indian population.

According to industry analysts, consumers prefer premium brands and are prepared to pay more for these higher
quality products. Additionally, innovative packaging, branding and marketing campaigns with the use of social
media are targeted more towards the younger population and focused on branded products. New product
launches and variants of existing core products are highly targeted to maximize market share and will require
investment in brand building and R&D. The focus on premium brands will allow manufacturers to improve their
operating margins.

Performance Overview

Net Sales {including C8U sales) remained relatively flat at Rs. 1,846 Crore. The overall IMFL volumes declined by
4.3% to 19.49 million cases whereas the subset of Prestige & above brands volume increased by 8.8%. As a
percentage of total IMFL volumes, these brands now contribute 20.7% compared to 18.3% last year. IMFL sales
value contributed 71,9% of the total sales during the year.
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Operational EBITDA decreased by 13.2% and margins declined by 142 basis points to 9.8% compared to the
previous year. ENA and glass bottle input costs were two of the factors that led to this margin compression, ENA
cost during the year increased by 6% translating into a total impact of Rs. 21.0 Crore. Glass bottle prices increased
by 6% from September 2014 resulting in a total impact of Rs. 7.0 Crore. Furthermore, EBITDA was also impacted by
a Rs. 9.9 Crore charge on account of the depreciation of INR on the payment of US Dollar denaminated ECB
instalments, This amount has been classified under Other Expenses,
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During Q4 FY2015, the Company's joint venture {JV} in Maharashtra, Radico NV Distitleries Maharashtra Ltd. paid
its first dividend on its 10% cumulative preference shares. Radico Khaitan received a dividend of Rs, 4.6 Crore from
its preference shares in the JV which has been included under Other Income. Radico Khaitan holds a 36% strategic
stake in this ]V which is expected {0 be a debt free entity in FY 2016,

Operational Net Profit decreased by 9.3% compared with same period last year. Margin for the year was 4.2%.
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Liguidity

Radico Khaitan's ongoing focus on free cash flow generation resulted in the reduction of Total Debt. The Company
made a repayment of Rs. 67,8 Crore during the year. As of March 31, 2015, Total DebtwasRs. 849.3 Crore, Cash and
Cash Equivalents were Rs. 10,3 Crore resulting in Net Debt of Rs. 838.9 Crore (vs. Rs. 888.5 Crore as on March 31,
2014). Tota! Debt consisted of Rs. 412.4 Crore of Working Capital loans and Rs. 436.9 Crore of Long Term loans,
including Long Term loans maturing within 12 months of the balance sheet date. Total Debt also included Rs. 13.3
Crore on account of the non-cash impact of the depreciation of the rupee on foreign currency loans (ECB).

Credit Rating

Radica Khaitan'’s long term and short term credit facilities are rated by CARE Ratings. Radico Khaitan's long term
credit facilities are rated CARE A+ {Single A Plus) and short term credit facilities are rated CARE A1+ (A One Plus).

CARE A+ rated instruments are considered to have adequate degree of safety regarding timely servicing of
financial obligations. Such instruments carry low credit risk. CARE A1+ rated instruments are considered to have
very strong degree of safety regarding timely payment of financial obligations. Such instruments carry the fewest
credit risk.

Review of Operations

Radico Khaitan is well placed and has taken necessary steps to capitalize on the opportunities arising from the
structural changes ongoing in the sector. The Company's efforts are evident from its increased contribution of the
Prestige & above brands. During the year, Prestige & above hrands accounted for 20.7% of the total IMFL sales
compared to 18.3% in the same period last year with a growth of 8.8% over Y 2014,
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Environment Friendly initiatives at Rampur Plant

During the year, Radico Khaitan installed and commissioned integrated evaporators in the grain spirits plant, which
converts the entire thin siop into wet cake that can be sold as cattle fodder. This bas helped in bringing down the
effluent discharge from grain plant to zero. The Company also installed and commissianed integrated evaporators
in the molasses distillation plant resulting in reduction of spent wash generation by approximately 45%. After the
effluent is passed through the RO plant, additional 45% effluent volume is reduced and only about 25% of the total
effluent is left for hio-composting. Radico Khaitan has also increased the bic-composting area by 7 acres to
consume more effluent in bic-composting and has reduced fresh water consumption by recycling process
candensate and lees from distillation plants to fermentation.

Business Strategy

With the changing business environment, Radico Khaitan's fongstanding and successful premiumization strategy is
expected to improve the Company's revenue and profitability in the near term. Key growth drivers include:



R&D, Innovation and New Product Launches

Innovation is the key to success for Radico Khaitan and it continues to strive for better quality products and variants
to suit the consumer's changing preferences and aspirations. In addition to new product development, the
Company continuousty focuses on improving existing products and packaging innovation which provides it witha
competitive edge. Radico Khaitan had undertaken extensive consumer research to conceptualize and develop a
new product during the year namely Magic Moments Electra, a ready to drink (RTD) offering. 1n June 2015, the
Company launched ‘Electra’ on a test marketing basis in the states of Uttar Pradesh, Haryana, Delhi and West
Bengal. Radico Khaitan's Magic Moments vodka has a leading market share of the Indian vodka industry. Magic
Moments Electra is expected to capitalise on the success of Magic Moments vodka in the coming years as the
Company plans ta launch it on a pan India basis,

Cost Optimization

Radice Khaitan has a significant distillation capacity of 150 million fitres which makes the Company self dependent
for its ENA requirements to a large extent and also provides a cushion against volatility in the ENA prices. The
Company has a capacity to store 3 months' equivalent of its molasses requirements. This insutates the Company
against short term fluctuations in molasses prices. Radico Khaitan has also taken other steps to optimize cost
structure. This includes rationalisatian of the bottie supplies and diversification of its supplier base thereby limiting
the net cost impact.

Exports and New International Partnerships

Radico Khaitan has made outstanding progress in building the brand equity and consumer loyalty in the overseas
markets. Today, the Company has become a truly global brand and exports its products to around 60 countries
worldwide. In FY2015, export volumes in the premium category brands experienced strong growth compared with
FY2014. Over the years, the Company has made investments in brand building which has created a large consumer
base outside India. Radico Khaitan's products have a gained strong foothold across both the developed markets
such as the US and Europe and developing economies in Africa and Middle East. The Company has developed a
detailed understanding of customer preferences in the international markets and expects to increase profitability
in the exports business through a focus on premium brands and new geographies.

Supply Chain Management

Radico Khaitan's focus on providing its consutners with a wide range of products has led to the requirement of a
comprehensive supply and distribution network. The Company currently has a pan-india manufacturing and
distribution network covering approximately 90% of retail cutlets. Its products are sold through over 45,000 retail
and 5,000 on-premise outlets. Radico Khaitan continues to strive to build flexibility acrass the supply chain to
ensure reliable volume deliveries in a timely and cost-effective manner. Ongoing monitoring and updates in the
area of manufacturing network planning, technology and people systems have helped enhance responsivenass,
Use of technology solutions and predictive analytics for more accurate data capture and informed decision making
remains the key to an efficient supply chain management system.

Opportunities and Threats
Opportunities
Economic Growth: The Indian economy is entering into an exciting phase of growth. It is anticipated that

implementation of structural reforms will result in an increase in investment activity. Furthermore, the recent
macro-economic indicators confirm the strengthening consumer demand across the country.

increase in Disposable Income: During FY2015, India's annual per capita income according to the IMF increased
by 9.2% to reach Rs. 87,748. With improvement in the economy, the per capita income is expected to increase
resulting in higher disposable income,



Rural vs. Urban Consumption: The proportion of the population living in urban areas is gradually increasing
primarily due to the migration from rural areas. This together with increasing rural consumption is expected to
drive consumption demand strongly. Government has taken several initiatives which are expected ta drive rural
growth. Such initiatives include schemes to improve rural farm yields, investment in infrastructure, and creation of
Nationat Agricultural mission to ensure better prices for both farmers and consumers, Rural alcohol consumption
has increased at a 5 year CAGR of 9.1% compared to 4.9% in urban region. This trend of fast growing rural
consumption is expected to continue in the near term. The Company continues to invest in improving its
gistribution network across rural markets with an ongoing focus on the urban market.

Favourable Demographics: The demographic profile of India is skewed towards a younger poputation with the
age group of 15-55 years constituting around 60%. Currently over 825 million Indians are of drinking age and
another 82 million are expected to be added in the group by CY2019. The younger generation is more focused on
quality of lifestyle and willing to pay for premium products.

Changing Consumer Preferences: The increase in per capita income has resulted in higher disposable income.
Furthermore, the aspiration for better living standards has resulted in the gradual change in consumer preferences
towards better quality products.

Increased Alcohol Accessibility and Availability: There has been anincrease in the variety of alcohol and brands
with most of them easily available in governmentlicensed outlets, government shops, private licensed retail chains,
vestaurants, pubs and bars. Furthermore, the social acceptability of alcohol hasimproved in India.

Price Increases: The Company is focusing on achieving price increases in various regional markets in which it
operates. Any price increases achieved will help to improve the revenues as wetll as peofitability.

Threats

Change in Legal Drinking Age: Any government regulation aimed to increase the legal drinking age in india can
have an adverse impact on the volume demand of IMFL. However, the consumption at the lower end of the legal
drinking age is relatively fess and may not have any significant impact on the industry volumes,

Change in Tax: Taxes on alcohol are levied anly by the state governments and account for a large portion of their

tax revenues. Therefore any significant tax increase can result in higher retail prices, thus impacting overall demand
of IMFL.

Competition from International Players: As the per capita liquor consumption is significantly lower compared to
other countries, many international manufacturers are trying to penetrate the Indian market. Furthermore, the
ongaing structural changes with the focus on premiumzation will allow them to introduce their premium brandsin
India. Such developments may have potential impact on the market share of existing players. However, Radico
Khaitan has strong brand loyalty among consumers and its commitment o provide them with better quality
products at relatively lower price points provides the Company with a competitive edge,

Risk and Concerns
Regulatory Environment

in India, the alcohot industry is highly regulated primarily due to high excise duties, restrictive retail sales licences
and a ban on direct advertising. These factors create major barriers to promote new as well as existing brands. Any
policy formulated by the central or state government in areas such as production, distribution, marketing or
taxation may have an adverse impact on the performarnce of the Company.

Increase in Raw Material Prices
Any increase in ENA prices will have a negative impact on the profitability of the Company. ENA prices may increase

due its alternative use in ethancl blending and a more attractive price offered by the petrochemical industry.
However, the Company's capability to shift to a grain based distillery insulates it against any significant increase in



prices of molasses.
Regional Diversification

The Company has manufacturing and distribution presence across the country, Its strategically located
manufacturing facilities and distribution centers at various locations provide easy access to key markets. Radico
Khaitar's facus on expanding exports will help to further mitigate any potential geographical risk.

Foreign Exchange Rate Variations

A component of the Company's debt is foreign cusrency denominated, which makes it susceptible to currency risk.
Any unfavourable variation in the foreign exchange rate can impact the profitabifity. Radico Khaitan takes
appropriate measures to measures to minimize the risk.

Awards and Recognitions

During the year, Radico Khaitan received numerous awards for its leading brands, These awards are a testament to
the Company's vision of changing consumer preferences as well asthesu perior quality of its products.

internal Control Systems & Adequacy

Radico Khaitan lays significant emphasis on ensuring best-in-class standards for internal control systems and is
commitied to the principie of prudent growth. The Company has adequate systems for internal control
commensurate with its size and complexities. These ensure that its assets and interests are carefully protected;
checks and balances are in place to determine the accuracy and reliability of accounting data. Well documented
processes have been implemented to ensure that policies are promoted and adhered to. There is clear demarcation
of roles and responsibilities at various levels of operations.

The Internal Control system aims to make sure that the business aperations function efficiently and applicable
faws, rules, regulations and policies of the Company are followed. The internal audit function periodically performs
audit of various processes and activities. The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Internal Control
system, and also invites functional Directors and Senior Management personnel to provide periodic updates on
operational effectiveness and controls. A CEC and CFO Certificate, forming part of the Corporate Governance
Report, confirms the existence and effectiveness of internal controls and reiterates their responsibilities to report
deficiencies to the Audit Committee and rectify the same, The Company has appointed Grant Thornten as their
internal auditors, which in turn submits quarterly reports to the Audit Committee.

Information Technology (IT}

Information Technology is core to the Company's processes, improvement and transformational initiatives. Radico
Khaitan continues to explare and implement new emerging technolagies for furthering business objectives. IT is
accordingly managed through a robust governance process that covers value delivery, cost optimisation,
technology management, support and education. The Information Technology systems in the Company form the
backbone for carrying out all the business processes, for communication and collaboration, !t also provides
information for effective decision making, monitoring and management control.

Over the years, Radico Khaitan hasimplemented a comprehensive ERP system which helps the Company to connect
with its customers and better understand their requirements, enhance the supply chain and make the sourcing and
supply forecasts more accurate. [T system and infrastructure is being continuously monitored and enhanced with

any required upgrades. IT Risk Management is addressed by covering all aspects of 1T Security and Business
Continuity Planning.



Human Resource Management

Radico Khaitan understands that human resource is critical for the overall growth and success of the organization.
The Company also believes its business success would not have been possible without the continuous support,
passion and commitment of its employees. The human resource department is highly focused on enhancing
stakeholder value by ensuring a streamlined dialogue between the management and the employees. Radico
Khaitan undertakes continuous efforts to employ and retain professionally qualified, dedicated and cammitted
persannel. This approach to human resource management has resulted in extremely low attrition and reflects the
constructive refationship between the Company and its employees. Currentiy, the Company employs [1,150]
personnel, There are no financial or commercial transactions that have resulted in a potential conflict of interest
between Senior Management and the Company. During the fiscal year there has been no loss of preduction atany
of the Company's manufacturing facilities due to industrial unrest.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis contains “forward looking statements” including, but
without limitation, statements relating to the implementation of strategic initiatives, and other statements
relating to Radico Khaitan's future business developments and economic performance. While these forward
looking statements indicate our assessment and future expectations concerning the development of our business,
a number of risks, uncertainties and other unknown facters could cause actual developments and results to differ
materially from our expectations. These factors include, but are not limited to, general market, macro-economic,
governmental and regulatory trends, movements in currency exchange and interest rates, competitive pressures,
technological developments, changes in the financial conditions of third parties dealing with us, legislative
devetopments, and other key factors that could affect our business and financial performance. Radico Khaitan
undertakes no obligation to publicly revise any forward icoking statements to reflect future / likely events or
circumstances.

For and on behalf of the Board
sdf-
Place: New Delhi Dr. Lalit Khaitan

Date: 10.08.2015 Chairman & Managing Director



Report on Corporate Governance

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and ethical business conduct. it is all about how an
organization runs its business keeping in mind its objectives, philosophy and social responsibility. Your Company is
committed to sound principles of Corporate Governance with respect to all its procedures, palicies and practices.
Radico strives to be a reliable and trusted organization in buiiding and maintaining relationships with
shareholders, lenders, employees and public at large. Under good Corporate Governance we are committed to
ensure that all functions of the Company are discharged in a professionally sound, accountable and competent
manner.

The governance processes and systems of your Company have strengthened over a period of time resulting in
constant improvisation of sustainable and profitablie growth. In addition to complying with the statutory
requirements, effective governance systems and practices towards improving transparency, disclosures, internal
contrals and promaotion of ethics at work place have been institutionalized.

The Board of Directors believes in upholding the highest standards of accountability and actively participate in
overseeing risks and strategic management. The organization views Corporate Governance in its widest sense
almost like a trusteeship, a progressive philosophy and ideology ingrained in the corporate culture, The Board fully
supports and endorses corporate governance practices in accordance with the provisions of Clause 49 of the listing
agreement. The Company has complied with the requirements of the said Clause and listed below is the status
with regard to the same,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
Composition:

Radico has a broad based Board of Directors, constituted in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, listing
agreements entered with stock exchanges and in accordance with Good Corporate practices. The Board functions
either as a full Board or throughits Committees constituted to oversee specific operational areas.

As on date, the Board of Directors comprises of eight (8) Directors of which four {4} are Non-Executive /
Independent Directors, one (1) is Non-Executive / Non Independent Director (woman director) while three (3} are
Executive Directors. The compaosition of the Board is in conformity with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and
represents the optimum combination of professionalism, knowledge, experience and consists of eminent
individuals from industry, technical, legal and financial areas.

The details of the Directors being re-appointed on retirement by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting,
as required pursuant to Clause 49(IV) {G) of the Listing Agreement, are mentioned in the Notice to the Annual
General Meeting, forming part of the Report. The brief profile of the Board Members is given in the website of the
Campany (www.radicokhaitan.com), '

Number of Board Meetings:

During the financial year ended 31" March, 2015, four (4} meetings of the Board of Directors were held and the
maximum time gap between two (2) meetings did not exceed four (4) months. The dates on which the Board
Meetings were held were as follows:

Date (s) on which meeting{s} were held

30" May 2014

12" August 2014
11" Nogvember 2014
10" February 2015



The Board meets at least once in a quarter to review the quarterly financial results and operations of the Company.

in addition to the above, the Board also meets as and when necessary to deliberate on various issues relating to the
business of the Company. The tentative annual calendar of Board Meetings for the ensuing year is decided well in
advance by the Board and is published as part of the Annual Report.

All the Directors have informed the Company periodically about their Directorship and Membership on the Board /

Committees of other companies. As per disclosure received from Director(s}, none of the Directors holds

Membership in more than ten (10) Committees, Board level Committees and Chairmanship in more than five (5)
such Committees.

The details of the composition, nature of Directorship, the number of meetings attended and the directorships in
other companies of the Directors of the Company are detailed below. This table also signifies the relationship of the

Directors with each other as required to be disclosed in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement:

Name of Nature of Refaticnship Attendance Directorship Membetship and
the Directorship with each other in gther Chairmanship of
Diractor Companias (*} the Committees
of the Beard of
gther Companies
**
At the At the Committee 1 Commiittee
Board last AGM kember Chairman
Or. Lalit Khaitan Chairman & Father of 4 Leave sought -
Managing Director Mr. Abhishek
Khaitan and
Mrs. Shailja Saraf
Mr, Abhishek Khaitan] Managing Director Son of 4 Leave sought -
D, Lalit Khaitan
and brother of
Mrs. Shailja Saraf
Mr. K.P. Singh Whate Time Directar Hot related to 3 Yes 1
any of the
Directors
#Mr. K.S. Mehta MNon-executive / Not related to 3 Ho 2 1 1
Independant any of the
Directors
(. Raghupati Non-execlitive / Mot related to 2 No B 1 1
Singhania Independent any of the
Directors
M. Ashutesh Patra Non-executive { Not related lo 4 Ne
Independent any of the
Directors
Mr. Sarvesh Non-executive / Mot related to 4 Yes
Srivastava Independernt any of the
Directors
Wars, Shailja Saraf Non-executive Daughter of 2 Ho - - -
Mon-independent D, Lalit Khaitan
and sister of
M. Abhishek
Khaitan
Notes:
*) Excludes directorship and committee membership in Radico Khaitan Limited. Also excludes directorship in

Private Limited Companies, foreign Companies and companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act,

2013.

**) For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committee Memberships and Chairmanships of a Directar,
the Audit Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Public Limited Companies have
been considered.



Tenure:

In Compliance of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement post ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except the Chairman & Managing Director and independent Directors, all other Directors
of the Company are liable to retire by rotation. One-third of the said rotational directors are liable to retire every
year and if eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

BOARD PROCEDURES:

The Board meets at reqular intervals to discuss and decide on business strategies / policies and review the financial
position of the Company.

The Board Meetings are governed by a structured Agenda. The Agenda along with comprehensive notes and
background material are circulated 7 days in advance before each meeting to all the Directors for facilitating
effective discussion and decision making. The Board members may bring up any matter for consideration of the
Board, in consultation with the Chairman. The information as specified in Annexure [A to the Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement is regularly made available to the Board.

Presentations are made by the Chairman & Managing Director, Managing Director and the Senior Management on
the Company's performance, operations, plans and other matters on a periodic basis. The proceedings of the
meetings of the Board and its Committees are recorded in the form of minutes, which are circulated to the Board
for perusal within stipulated period under the Companies Act, 2013. The important decisions taken at the Board /
Committee meetings are communicated to the concerned departments/ divisions.

The Board has complete access to any information within the Company which as specified in Annexure |A to the
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

independent Directors:

The Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfiil the conditions of independence specified in Section 149 (6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and meet with requirement of Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges. A formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors as
provided in Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement has been issued and disclosed on the website of the
Companyviz. www.radicokhaitan.com

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR DIRECTORS:

At the time of appointing a Director, a formal letter of appointmentis given to him, which inter alia explains the
role, function, duties and responsibilities expected of him as a Director of the Company. The Director s also
explained in detail the Compliance required from him under the Companies Act, 2013, Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement and other relevant regulations and affirmation taken with respect to the same. The Chairman and
Managing Director also have one to one discussion with the newly appointed director to familiarize him with the
Company's operations. Further, the Company has put in place a system to familiarize the Independent directors
about the Company, its products, business and the on-geing events relating to the Company.

CONFLICT OF INTERESTS:

Each Director informs the Company on an annual basis about the Board and the Committee positions he occupies
in other companies including Chairmanships and notifies changes during the year. Members of the Board while
discharging their duties, avoid conflict of interest in the decision making process. The members of the Board
restrict themsetves from any discussions and voting in transactions that they have concern or interest.

PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIPS OF TRANSACTION WITH THE COMPANY OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

The Non-executive directors had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company in their personal
capacity during the financial year 2014-2015,



REAPPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION:

Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing Director, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of
the Company and being eligible offer himself for reappointment. His remuneration was approved by the
Shareholders in their meeting held on 30.09.2013 for a period of 5 years. There is no change in the remuneration
paid to Mr. Abhishek Khaitan.

A brief resume of Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing Director, seeking re-appointment in the forthcoming AGM in
terms of Clause 49 IV (G) of Listing Agreement is given below:

Name Mr. Abhishek Khaitan
Date of Birth 29.04.1973
Date of Appointment 20.02.2013
Expertise in special functional areas ‘ industrialist
Qualifications B.E {1.P.) Bangalore University.
Management Diploma from Harvard University
List of outside directorship as on 31" March 2015 NIL
Chairman / Member of the Committee of NEL

other companies as on 31" March 2015

No. of shares held 86,065

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

Currently, there are nine {9) Committees of the Board, namely: Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, ESOP Compensation Committee, Finance Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) Committee, Operations Committee, Risk Management Committee and
Committee of Independent Directors. The Board has decided the terms of reference for these Committees. The
minutes of the meetings of the Committees are placed before the Board for information. The details as to the
composition, terms of reference, number of meetings and related attendance etc, of Committees mandatory
under the Companies Act and listing agreement are provided hereunder.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:
Compaosition and terms of reference

As on date, the Audit Committee comprises of three (3) Independent, Non-executive Directors. The members of the
Audit Cormmittee are Mr. Sarvesh Srivastava, Dr. Raghupati Singhania and Mr. Ashutosh Patra. All Members of the
Audit Committee are financially literate and bring in expertise in the fields of finance, taxation, economics, industry
and risk.

The Audit Committee invites the Chairman & Managing Director, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary, Statutory Auditor(s), Internal Auditor and Cost Auditors to attend the meetings of the Audit
Committee. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. The minutes of each Audit Committee
meeting are placed and discussed at the next meeting of the Board.

The scope of activities and terms of reference of the Audit Committee is in accordance with Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013,
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The details as to the date(s) on which the meetings were held and attendance of the Committee members during
the financial year ended 31st March, 2015 are as fatlows:

Date(s) on which the meeting(s) were held

30" May, 2014 11" November 2014
12" August 2014 10" February 2015
Name Meeting details Attended
Held
Mr, Sarvesh Srivastava 4 4
Dr, Raghupati Singhania 4 2
Mr. Ashutosh Patra 4 4

The role of the Audit Committee inter alia includes the following:

1. Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible,

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or
removal of the statutory auditor, fixing of audit fees and approving payments for any other service.

3. Recommending to the Board of Directors, the appointment of Cost Auditor for the Company.

4, Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's
report as per Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,

b. Changes in the Accounting policies and practices and the reasons for the same, major accounting entries
and significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

¢. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
d. Disdosure of any refated party transactions; and
e. Qualificationsin the draft audit report, if any.

5. Reviewing with management quarterly, haif-yearly, nine-months and annual financial statements,
standalone as well as consolidated before subimission to the Board forapproval.

6. Reviewing with management quarterly, half-yearly, nine-menths and annual financial statements,
standalone as well as consolidated before submission to the Board forapproval.

7. Reviewing with the management performance of statutory and internat auditors.
8. Discussion with the internal auditors, cost auditor on any significant findings and follow-up thereon.
9. Discussion with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern,



10. Reviewing reports furnished by the internal auditors and statutory auditors and ensuring suitabie follow-
up theraon.

11. Reviewing the Company's financial and risk management palicies, forex policy, management discussion
and analysis, significant related party transactions.

12. Reviewing with the management and the Statutory Auditors anticipated changes in the Accounting
Standards.

13. Review of the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower mechanism of the Company,

14. The Audit Committee has power to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, to seek

information from employees and to obtain outside financial and legal advise; and
15. Any other matter referred to by the Board of Directors.

Apartfrom the above, the Company has an internal audit team, headed by Mr. Mukesh Agarwal, who reports to the
Chief Financial Officer and the Audit Committee. From time to time, the Company's adequacy of internal contrals
cavering financial, operational, compliance, IT applications, etc., are reviewed by the Internal Audit team and
presentations are made to the Audit Committee on the findings of such reviews. The Audit Committee, inter alia,
reviews the adequacy of internal audit function and the internal audit reports including those related to internal
control weaknesses. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee as required by Clause 49 (1)
{A) {6) of the listing agreement,

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
Composition and terms of reference:

As on date, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of four (4) Directors, viz,, Dr. Raghupati
Singhania (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. K.S. Mehta, Dr. Lalit Khaitan, and Mr. Ashutosh Patra. The Committee's
terms of reference includes reviewing and recommending to the Board the salary, commission, other benefits,
service agreements and employment conditions of the Whole-time and the Managing Director and to approve the
selection, appointment and remuneration of relatives of Directors for halding an office or place of profit pursuant
to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of thelisting agreement.

Meeting and Attendance:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met two times during the year on 30.05.2014 at 10.45 A.M. and
4,00 PM. The necessary quorum was present for the meeting. The Table below provides the attendance of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee members:

sk Name Position Category No. of

No. Meeting
attended

1. Dr. Raghupati Singhania Chairman Non-Executive Independent Dof2

1. Dr. Lalit Khaitan Member Executive 2of2

2. Mr. Ashutosh Patra Member Non-Executive Independent 2of2

3. Mr. K.S, Mehta Member Non-Executive Independent 20f2

Terms of reference

The Board has framed the Remuneration and Nomination Committee Charter which ensures effective compliance
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The Board has clearly defined
terms of reference for the Remuneration and Nomination committee, which are as follows:



9,

10.

Reviewing the overall compensation policy, service agreements and other employment conditions of
Managing / Whole-time Director(s) and Senicr Management {one level below the Board);

to helpin determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;
to recommend to the Board appointment/ re-appointment and removal of Directors;
to frame criteria and determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors;

to recommend to the Board remuneration payable to the Directors {while fixing the remuneration to
Executive Directors the restrictions contained in the Companies act, 2612 is to be considered);

to create on evajuation framework for Independent Directars and the Board;

to provide necessary reports to the chairman after the evaluation process is completed by the Directors;
to assistin developing a succession plan for the Board,;

to assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities entrusted from time to time;

delegation of any of its powers to any Members of the Committee or the Compliance Officer.

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION TO ALL THE DIRECTORS IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2014-2015:

The Remuneration Committee decides the remuneration payable to the Chairman & Managing Directar, Managing
Director, Whole Time Director and Key Managerial Personnel's, considering the performance of the Company and
their achievements against objectives as set out by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board and
industry standards. The remuneration structure comprises of salary, perquisites, commission, etc. Annual
increments are decided by the Remuneration Committee and recommend to the Board, within the limits
mentioned in the contract and as approved by the shareholders. No severanceis payable to them on termination of

employment.
Executive Directors: -
(Rs. in lacs)
Sl. No. Name of director Salary Commission  Perquisites  Retiral No. of Tenure
and benefits* Stock
allowances options
1. Dr. Lalit Khaitan 305.55  Nil 2458 52.74 Nil 5 Years
2, Mr. Abhishek Khaitan  289.63  Nil 19.48 49.09 Nil 5 Years
3. Mr. K.P. Singh 100.49 Nil 22.26 9.86 Nil S Years

Contributions to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund.

Non Executive Directors*:

Sl. No. Name Sitting Fees (inRs.)
1, Mr. K.S. Mehta 1,206,000/
2. Mr. Ashutosh Patra 2.85,000/-
3. Dr. Raghupati Singhania 1,25,000/-
4, Mr. Sarvesh Srivastava 2,60,000/-
5. Mrs. Shailja Saraf 55,000/




* Non executive directors were paid sitting fees of Rs.15,000/- (Upto 30.5.2014) and Rs.40,000/- w.ef. 31.5.2014
for attending each meetings of the Board and Rs.10,000/ (upto 30.5.2014) and Rs.15,000/- w.e.f. 31.5.2014 for
Committees thereof and reimbursement of local conveyance.

Non executive directors were not paid any amount by way of salary, perquisites and other benefits including stock
options except the above mentioned sitting fees.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board has
carried out the annual performance evatuation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the
evaluation of the working of its 8oard Committees. A structured guestionnaire was prepared after circulating the
draft forms, covering various aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board
and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance.

The performance evaluation of the Chairman and Managing Director and the Non-Independent Directors was
carried out by the Independent Directors.  The Directors express their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

STAKEHOLDER'S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Stakeholder's Relationship Committee which is chaired

by a Non-Executive Director / Independent Director to specifically look into the redressal of shareholders queries
and complaints.

The details as to the composition of the Stakeholder's Relationship Committee previously named as Shareholders’
Grievances Committee, date(s) on which the meetings were held and the attendance of the members of the
Committee during the financial year ended 31" March, 2015 are as follows:

Date(s) on which the meeting(s) were held

30" May, 2014 11" November 2014
12" August 2014 10" February 2015
Name Meeting details Attended
Held
Mr. Ashwitosh Patra a 4
Mr. Sarvesh Srivastava 4 4
Mr. K.P. Singh 4 3
The terms of reference of the Committee include the following:
1. To specifically look into queries and complaints received from the shareholders, Lenders and other
stakeholders of the Company.
2. To oversee the performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company and
3. To recommend measures for overallimprovement in the quality of services to the investors.

4, To fix record date / book closure of share/ debenture transfer baok of the Company from time to time.



NAME AND DESIGNATION QF THE COMPLIANCE OFFICER:

Mr. AmitManchanda

Group Head - Legal &

Company Secretary

Radico Khaitan Limited

Plot No. J-1, Block B-1, Mohan Co-operative Industrial Area,
Mathura Road, New Delhi— 110044,

Tel. Nos.40975400/444/500/555, Fax Nos.41678841-42
Erail: info@radico.co.in

Details pertaining to the number of complaints received and responded and the status thereof during the
financial year ended 31st March, 2015 are given as follows:

Nature of Complaints Received
during the
year

Non-receipt of Dividend warrants 583

Non-receipt of Share Certificate(s) lodged for transfer / splitting of the share certificates etc. 105

Letters received from Stock Exchangel(s) / SEB1 5

Others/Miscellanecus 142

Total B36

All the aforesaid complaints were responded to by the Company appropriately and there were no pending
complaints at the end of the financial year 2014-2015.

All the requests, queries and complaints received during the financial year ended 31" March, 2015, were duly
addressed and no queries are pending for resolution on that date,

The Company provided Shareholder services in the foliowing time frame:

Si. Noe.  Nature of Query No. of days for disposal
1. Share Transfers 15 days

2. Demat of Shares 15 days

3. Dividend revalidation / issue of Dividend Drafts 7 days

4, Change of Address/ Bank Mandate 2 days

5. General queries 2 days

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE:

Pursuant to Clause 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on
30" May 2014 constituted CSR Committee comprises of four (4) Directors. The Members of the Committee are Dr.
Lalit Khaitan, Br. K.P. Singh, Mr. Ashutosh Patra (Independent Director) and Mrs. Shailja Saraf.

The purpose of the Committee is to formulate and monitor the CSR Policy of the Cormpany and ta make it more
comprehensive 50 as to indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule Vi of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Committee monitor and give guidance on various CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company and to
maonitor the process.

The constitution of CSR Committee and the CSR Policy of the Company is available on our website i.e.
www.radicokhaitan.com



Meeting and Attendance:

The CSR Committee met during the year on 10,02,2015. The necessary guorum was present for the meeting. The
Composition of the CSR Committee as at March 31, 2015 and the details of meeting of the Committee are as under:

sk Name Position Category No. of

No. Meeting
attended

1. Or. Lalit Khaitan Chairman Executive 1of1

2. Mr. K.P. Singh Member Executive 10f1

3. Mr. Ashutosh Patra Member Non-Executive Independent 1of1

4, Mrs. Shailja Saraf Member Non-Executive Non Independent 0of1

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

During the year under review, the Company did not have any subsidiary as defined under Clause 43 of the listing
agreement. However, the Company has formulates the material subsidiary policy and uploaded on the website of
the Company www.radicokhaitan.com.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS' MEETING:

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 10" February 2015, inter alia, to discuss:

1, Evaluation of performance of Non-independent directors and the Board of directors as a whole;

2. Evaluation of performance of the chairman of the Company, taking inta account the views of the Executive
and Non-Executive Directors;

3. Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the Management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board 1o effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

All Independent Directors were present for this Meeting.
CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION:
As required by Clause 49{V) of the Listing Agreement, the CEO / CFO Certificate for the financial year 2014-15

signed by Mr. Abhishek Khaitan, Managing Director as CEO and Mr, Dilip K Banthiya, CFO was placed before the
Board of Directors at their meeting held on 22™ May 2015,

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
The venue and time of the last three Annuat General Meetings of the Company are as follows:

lLocation Meeting Pate Time No. ot special
resoiutions set out
at the AGM
2013-2014 | Rampur Distillery 30™ September 2014 1.00 PM, 3
Bareilly Road

Rampur-244 901 (U.P)

2012-2013 | Rampur Distillery 30™ September 2013 1.00 PM. 2
Bareilly Road
Rampur — 244 901 (U.P)

2011-2012 Rampur Distitlery 24" September 2012 1.00 EM. Nil
Bareilly Road
Rampur - 244 901 (U.P)




Ali special resolutions set out in the notices for the Annual General Meetings were passed by the shareholders
at the respective meetings with requisite majority.

DISCLOSURES:

1.

a)

b}

c}

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions:

Your Company has not entered into any transaction of material nature except transactions with related
parties which are furnished under Notes to the Financial Statements as stipulated under Accounting
Standard 18 (AS-18), with the Promoters, their subsidiaries or relatives, Directors or the Management, etc.
All transactions were carried out on an arms-length basis and were not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

Details of non-compliance(s} by the Company:

The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Stock Exchange(s) and the Securities Exchange
Board of India on matters related to Capital Markets or any other matter, as may be applicable from time to
time. There were no penalties imposed or strictures passed against the Company by the statutory
authorities in this regard.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

The Company follows Accounting Standards prescribed by the Companies Accounting Standard Rules,
2006 (as amended) and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In preparation of financial
statements, the Company has not adepted a treatment different from what is prescribed in the Accounting
Standards, The financial statements for the year have been prepared in accordance with and in compliance
of the revised Schedule VI notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA).

Detaiis of compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement:

Your Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.
Following is the status of the compliance:

Audit Qualifications:

During the year under review, there was no audit qualification in the Company's financial statements. The
Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure a regime of unqualified financial statements.

Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism Policy:

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 30" May 2014 approved and adopted a Vigil Mechanism
Policy with an objective to provide Employees and Business Associates a framework and to establish a
formal mechanism or process whereby concerns can be raised in line with the Company's commitment to
highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct and its commitment to open
communication. Radico endeavours to provide its employees a secure and fearless working environment,
they are free to report any instance of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Company's code of conduct. A copy of the policy is ptaced on the internal server and on the website of the
company.

Sexual Harassment Policy:
Your Company has adopted a Sexual Harassment Policy with an objective to ensure a protective and equal

platform for working of women in the organization. From time to time information is provided to the
women empioyees to feel empowered and work in free environment.
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d)

e}

g)

Code of Conduct:

Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for all the employees indluding the Board Members and
Senior Management Personnel of the Company in accordance with the requirement under Clause 43{}(D)
of the Listing Agreement. The Code of Conduct has been posted on the waebsite of the Company
www.radicokhaitan.com. All the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
their compliance with the said Code of Cenduct for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015,

Unclaimed Suspense Account:

The Company has transferred 11765 numbers of unclaimed shares to the respective shareholders from the
unclaimed suspense account. Details of transfer are as under:

£} Outstanding shares iying in the unclaimed suspense account at the beginning of the year:
8745997,
(ii) Nymber of shareholders who approached the issuer for transfer of shares from the Unclaimed

Suspense Account during the year: 10.

{iti) Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the unclaimed suspense account
during the year: 10.

(iv) Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares lying in the unclaimed suspense
account at the end of the year: 2575 and 863232.

At the beginning of the financial year, there was no investor complaint that was unresolved. During the
year, the company received 6 investor complaints, all of which were resolved and as such there was no
unresolved investor complaint as at 31" March 2015.

Secretarial Audit:

As the measure of good Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on
30" May 2014 appointed M/s. Tanuj Vohra & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries to conduct
Secretarial Audit of the records of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report shall confirm that the
Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, listing agreement
with the Stock Exchanges and other statutory compliances applicable to the Company.

Share Dealing Code:

Comprehensive guidelines advising and cautiening the Management and staff on the procedure to be
followed while dealing with the shares of the Company are in place, in light of SEBE (Insider Trading)
Amendment Regulaticns, 2002, The Code of Conduct and corporate disclosure practices framed by the
company helps in ensuring compliances with the said Regulations. The code prescribes the detailed
procedures and guidelines to be adopted while dealing in the securities of the Company. The code is
appiicable to all directors, senior employees and their dependants. The said persons are prohibited from
dealing in the securities of the Company during the restricted trading periods notified by the Company,
from time to time and whilst in possession of any unpublished price sensitive information relating to the
securities of the Company.

Means of Communication:

a)

Quarterly/ Half-yearly/ Nine-months and Annual Audited Financial Results of the Company are published in
the Business $tandard, Dethi and Mumbai editions and Hindustan, Moradabad edition.



Quarterly results taken on record and published in the newspapers during 2014-2015:

Quarter ended

Date of
Board Meetings

Date of Publication in Newspapers

Business Standard (English)
New Delhi edition

Hindustan (Hindi)
Moradabad edition

30")une, 2014 12.08.2014 13.08.2014 13.08.2014
30" September, 2014 11.11.2014 12.11.2014 12.11.2014
31¥ December, 2014 10.02.2015 11.02,2015 11.02.2015
31" March 2015 22,05.2015 23.05.2015 23.05.2015
k) The results of the Company are also posted up on the Company's corporate website:

www.radicokhaitan.com. The Company's official news releases and presentations made to the

institutional investors and analysts are also available on the Company's website.

€ All important information pertaining to the Company is also mentioned in the Annual Report of the
Company which s circulated to the members and others entitied thereto for each financial year.

d Your Company provides necessary information to the Stock Exchanges in terms of the Listing Agreement

and other rules and regulations issued by the Securities Exchange Board of India.

GREEN INITIATIVE 1N CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Pursuant to Circular No. 17/2011 dated 21st April, 2011, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has undertaken a Green
Initiative in Corporate Governance whereby the shareholders desiraus of receiving notices, documents and other
communication from the Company through electronic mode, can register their e-mail addresses with the

Company,

Your Company encourages the shareholders to register their e-mail addresses with the Company or its Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited., by sending a letter signed by the
shareholders on addresses given below and intimate changes in the e-mail address from time to time.

Radico Khaitan Limited
Plot No.}-1, Block 8-1

Mohan Co-operative Industrial Area, Mathura Road, New Delhi— 110 044.
Tel. No.+ 91 11 40975400/444/500/555

Fax No.+91 11 41678841-42
Email:info@radico.co.in

M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Lirmnited

Registered Office:

M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited

Karvy Selenium Tower-B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Gachi Bowli,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serelingampally,

Hyderabad-500 032, Telangana

Toll Free No. 18 00 3454 601
Telephone no, 040-67162222
FaxNo.040-23001153

Email Id: einward.ris@karvy.com

W/s, Karvy Computershare Private Limited

Delhi Office:

305, New Delhi House, 27, Barakhamba Road, Connaught Place, New Delhi—110001.

Telephore No.011- 43681700

Fax No.011-43681710,.General Shareholder Information



General Shareholder Information

31" Annual General Meeting of the Company:

Date 30" day September 2015

Venue Rampur Distillery
Bareilly Road

Rampur - 244 901
Uttar Pradesh.

Time 1.00 PM.

Financial Calendar:
Financial year: 1" April to 31* March

For the year ended 31 March, 2015, quarterly financial results were announced on:

12" August 2014 First Quarter

11" November 2014 Second Quarter and Half Yearly
10" February 2015 Third Quarter and Nine Months
22" May 2015 Fourth Quarter and Annual

For the year ending 31" March, 206186, quarterly financial results will be announced as per the tentative schedule
detailed below:

Not later than 15" August 2015 First Quarter

Not later than 15" November 2015 Second Quarter and Half Yearly
Not later than 15" February 2016 Third Quarter and Nine Months
Mot later than 30™ May 2016 Fourth Quarter and Annual

PATE OF BOOK CLOSURE:
Book Closure dates have been provided in the Notice convening the AGM forming part of this Annual Report.
DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE:

Dividend payout date has been provided in the Notice convening the AGM forming part of this Annual Report.

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES:

The Company's securities are listed an the following stock exchanges:

Equity Shares:

t. Bombay Stock Exchange Lid.{BSE)
Phiroze Jegjeehbhoy Towers
Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400 001,

2. National Stock Exchange of india Ltd. (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, 5" Floor
Plot no. /1, G Block
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E}
Mumbai — 400 051,
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The Company has paid the listing fees for the financial year 2015-16 to the stock exchange(s) on which Company's
shares are listed. The Company has also paid custodial fees for the year 2015-16 to National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited {CDSL). The International Security Identification
Nurmber (1SIN} allocated to the Company by NSD4 and COSLis INES44F01028.

The stack exchange codes assigned to the Company's shares at these stock exchanges are as follows:

Stock Exchange Code
BSE 532497
NSE RADICO

STOCK PRICE DATA.:

The monthly high and low prices and volumes of your Company's shares at BSE and NSE for the year ended 31"
March, 2015 are given as follows:

Month BSE NSE

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.} | Volume High (Rs.) Low (Rs.} Volume

{No. of Shares) {No. of Shares)

2014
Agpril 151.75 103.1G 2799586 151.45 103.00 9507514
May 117.80 99,75 4180092 117.80 99.69 14172520
June 124.15 102.80 3996899 124.40 102.75 12362587
July 118.80 94.75 1583612 116.80 95.50 6087564
August 99.05 78.45 970067 99.00 78.25 4660321
September | 97.50 75.30 4685879 97.50 77.05 9437529
Qctober 95.00 77.85 1186463 94.95 77.25 4403360
November | 92.50 76.20 1061926 92.50 75.95 4994625
December 162.70 77.00 5829628 102.90 78.10 13007598
2015
January 98.15 83.50 2286726 99.60 83.80 9978619
February 98.30 84.25 2258167 98.30 84.10 6664980
March 98.00 82.00 1691152 97.90 82.50 7130238

Note; High and low are in Rupees per traded share. Volume is the total monthly volume of trade in Radico Khaitan's
shares on BSE and NSE.

The Chart below shows the comparison of your Company's share price movement on BSE vis-3-vis the movement of
the BSE Sensex for the year 2014 -15 {based on month end closing).

The shares of the Company are traded in the B category at BSE and are also actively traded on NSE.
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SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM:

The share transfer activities in respect of the shares in physical mode are carried out by the Company's Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent (RTA). The Shares lodged for transfer are processed and returned within the stipulated time.
The applications and requests received by your Company for transfer of shares held in physical form are processed
and the share certificates for the same are sent to the transferee within the stipulated period under the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement. The Board of Directors of the Company have delegated the autherity to
approve the transfer of shares, transmission of shares or requests for deletion of name of the shareholder, etc,, as
mentioned in Clause 49(V){G){iv) of the Listing Agreement to the designated officials of the Company. The
transactions in respect of issue of duplicate share certificates, split, rematerialisation, consolidation and renewal of
share certificates are approved by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

Asummary of all the transfers, transmissions, deletion requests, etc., are placed befere the Board of Directors from
time to time for their review,

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS:

The distribution of shareholding of the Company as on 31" March, 2015 is as follows:

8l. { Category of Shareholders Total No. of % of Total no. of
No. Shares Shares
1. Promaoters 53829818 40.46
2. Mutuzl Funds & UT] 13764012 10.35
3. Insurance Companies, Banks, 196395 0.15 -
State Financial Cerporation
4, Flls 24592645 18.49
5. Private Corporate Bodies 12814452 9.63
6. Indian Public 26401643 19.84
7. NRIs/OCBs 1408180 1.06
8. State Government 31620 0.02
Total 133038765 100.00

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING OF THE COMPANY BY NUMBER OF SHARES HELD AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2015

IS AS FOLLOWS:
Share Holding Shareholders Shares % Total
of Nominal

| Value of
Rs. Rs. Number % to Total Physical Dematerialised| Total % to

Shares shares shares shares Total |

UPTO 1 5000 3481C 96.37 2296083 9577779 11873862 8.93
5001 16000 726 2.01 2340190 2419263 2653273 1.99
1001 20000 285 0.78 62375 2114069 2176444 1.64
20001 30000 80 0.22 10850 976374 987224 0.74
30007 40000 44 0.12 15500 779921 795421 0.60
40001 50600 36 0.10 0 841849 841849 0.63
50001 60000 12 0.03 0 338253 338253 0.25
60001 100000 35 c.10 31620 1354851 1386471 1.04
100001 | ABOVE 92 0.26 0 111985968 111985968 84.18
TOTAL 36120 100.00 2650438 130388327 133038765 {100.00




OTHER INFORMATION:
Corporate |dentification Number (CIN No.,): L26941UP1983PLC027278
UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND / SHARES:

In terms of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to transfer the amount of dividend
remaining unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the unpaid dividend account to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Sharehalders are cautioned that once the unclaimed dividend is
transferred to IEPF, a shareholder cannot claim the amount of dividend from the Company.

In accordance with Clause 5A I of the Listing Agreement, the Company has sent three reminders to the
shareholders whose share certificates are lying unclaimed with the Company.

In case yours shares are lying unclaimed with the Company, you are requested to claim the same.
TRANSFER TQ INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND:

As per the Companies Act, 2013, dividends that are unclaimed for a period of seven years, statuterily get
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (1$PF) administered by the Central Government and
thereafter cannot be claimed by investors. To ensure maximum disbursernent of unclaimed dividend, the Company
sends reminders to the concerned investars, before transfer of dividend to IEPF. Pursuant to Section 205A of the
Companies Act, 1956, as amended by the Companies {Amendment} Act, 1999, unclaimed dividend has been
transferred to |EPF as per below table:

Financial Year | Date of Total Dividend Unclaimed Due Date of
Declaration of Dividend as Transfer to IEPF
Dividend on 31-3-2014 account

FY 2002 16.07.2002 38579176.00 730556.G0 22.08.2009

FY 2003 18.07.2003 34721258.40 914312.00 24.08.2010

FY 2004 17.07.2004 38579176.00 973284.00 22.08.2011

FY 2005 16.11.2005 424370G93.60 983341.0C 21.12.2012

FY 2006 25.09.2006 48223970.00 1135840.00 30.10.2013

FY 2007 26.09.2007 51231109.50 922432.00 05.11.2014

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT:
Karvy Computershare Private Linuted is the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company.
shareholders, beneficial owners and depository participants (DPs) are requested to send/ deliver the documents/

correspondence relating to the Company's share transfer activity ete. to Karvy Computershare Private Limited,
Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company at the foilowing address:

Registered Office: Delhi Office:

M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited M/s. Karvy Compustershare Private Limited
Karvy Selenium Tower-B, 305, New Delhi House

Plot No. 31 & 32, Gachi Bowli, 27, Barakhamba Road

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serelingampally, Connaught Place

Hyderabad-500 032, Telangana New Delhi— 110001,

Toll Free No.18 00 3454 001 Telephone No. 011-43681700

Telephone no. 040-67162222 FaxNo.011-43681710.

Fax No.040-23001153

Email Id: einward, ris@karvy.com




For the benefit of shareholders, decuments will continue to be accepted at the following registered office of the
Company.

Rampur Distillery

Bareilly Road

Rampur — 244 901 (U.P)
Tel, No.0585-2350601-02
Fax No.0595-2350009
Email: info@radico.co.in

Members are requested to quote their e-mail address, telephone number and full address for prompt reply to their
communication.

Website: www radicokhaitan.com
E-mail 1D for Investor's Grievances:
The e-mail address for investor grievance is: info@radico.co.in

The above exclusive e-mail id is disclosed by the Company on its websites and all the various material
correspondence, publications and communication to the shareholders at large.

GOING CONCERN:

The Board is satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue its business for the foreseeable future
and consequently considers it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

tor and on behalf of the Board

sd/-
Place: New Delhi Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Date: 10.08.2015 Director

DiIN - 0D238222

Annexure to Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31" March, 2015

DECLARATION OF COMPUANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

| hereby confirm that:

The Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel, affirmatien(s)

that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Managetnent Personnet in
respect of the financial year ended 31" March, 2015. .

Abhishek Khaitan
Managing Director

New Delhi
Date: 10.08.2015
DIN - 00772865
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Auditors' Report on Corporate Governance

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RADICO KHAITAN LIMITED

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Radico Khaitan timited for the
year ended March 31", 2015, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said campany with
Stock Exchanges of India.

2. The Compliance of condition of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Qur
examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company
for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Clause, Itis
neither and audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

3. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that
the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned
Listing Agreement.

4. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

ForV. Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No.: 109208W)

Place: New Dethi {M.S. BALACHANDRAN)
Dated: 10-August-2015 Partner

(M. No:024282)



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT i

TO THE MEMBERS OF RADICO KHAITAN LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RADICO KHAITAN LIMITED (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31" March 2015, the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the malters stated in Section 134(5} of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act”) with respect 1o the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting
principles generally accepted in india, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation

of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone finandia! statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to beincluded in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditar considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are sppropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the company has in place an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting principles used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the company's Directars, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinicn on the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in confarmity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of



affairs of the Company as at 31" March 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

<)

d

f

We have sought and obtained all the information and expfanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, praper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash flow statement dealt with by this
report arein agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalene financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 201 4.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31" March 2015 and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, nene of the directors is disqualified as on 31" March, 2015 from being
appointed as a directorin terms of section 16442) of the Act,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repart in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Campanies (Audit and Auditars} Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and
information and according to the explanations given to us and such checks as we considered
necessary:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements —Refer Note 314} to 31(iv) to the financial statements.

ji. There are no long-term contracts including derivative contracts, requiring provision for material
foreseeable losses, under the applicable law or accounting standards.

Hi. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

ForV. SankarAiyar & Co,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No.: 109208W)

Place; New Delhi (M.S.BALACHANDRAN)
Dated: 22-May-2015 Partner

(M. No:024282)



Annexure to the Independent Auditors' Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Radico Khaitan Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

(i) {a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

{b) We are informed that the management has not physically verified fixed assets during the
year. Therefore, reconciliation with the book records and discrepancies, if any, can be
ascertained only after the verification is carried out.

i) (a) On the basis of information and explanations obtained, stocks of finished goods and raw
materials of the distiltery / bottling units have been under physical check by the excise
department in coordination with the Company's supesvisory staff at frequent intervals.
Other stocks, stores and spares, at various locations have been physically verified by the
management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reascnable.

{b} In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the
management are reasonable and adeguate in relation to the size of the Company and the
nature of its husiness,

(d] In our apinion, the Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

{iii) The Company has granted Rs. 1000 lacs as interest free unsecured working capital advance under a
specific manufacturing and selling arrangement and Rs.1000 lacs as interest-free unsecured
advance to a joint venture company covered under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,

In respect of the above:

{a) The warking capital advance and the unsecured advance are without any stipulations as to
repayment and are interest free.

{b) We are informed that as per the arrangement with the joint venture company, in the
absence of any specific stipulation, there is no overdue in respect of the said working
capital advance and interest free unsecured loan.,

(i) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate
internal control systems commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its
business, for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods. During the
course of our audit, we have neither come across nor have been informed of any continuing failure
to correct major weaknesses in the internal control system.

() The Company has nat accepted deposits from the public within the meaning of sections 73 or 76
of the Act and hence clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company, pursuant to sules

(vii)

made under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been maintained and the required statements are in the
process of compilation. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the records of the Company, the Company has been generally reguiar in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of Excise,
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Value added tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There
were no arrears of undisputed statutory dues as at 31" March, 2015, which were
outstanding for a period of more than sixmonths from the date they became payable.

(b) The disputed statutory dues of different years refating to income tax, sales tax, service tax
or duty of excise or value added tax or cess, which have remained unpaid as on 31" March,
2015 for which appeals are pending as under:

Nature of Amount (Rs.lacs) Period to which Forum where dispute is pending
the Dues the amount relates
Sales Tax/ 4.12 1998-99 & 1999-00 Revision before
Entry Tax Allahabad High Court
1.27 1999-00 Trade Tax Tribunal, Moradabad
Rajasthan 157.67 2010-11 Appellate Tribunal, Jaipur
Sales Tax
Excise Duty 17.37 1981 Allahabad High Court -

Lucknow Bench

Excise Duty 92.38 1995 to 2005 Aliahabad High Court -
Lucknow Bench
(Bank Guarantee issued)

Excise Duty 59.01 2005-06 to 2008-09 Allahabad High Court -
Lucknow Bench

Service Tax 15,371.50 July 2003 to March 2012 CESTAT, Delhi
(including interest
and penalty}

{c) Based on the information and explanations obtained, the Company has transferred the
required amount within time to the Investor Education & Protection Fund in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

{viii)  The Company has no accumulated losses and has notincurred cash losses during the financial year covered
by our audit or in the immediately preceding financial year.

(B0 On the basis of the verification of records and information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues to financiaj institutions or banks or debenture holders.

{x) The Company has given a guarantee of Rs.237.60 lacs for loans taken by Radico NV Distilleries
Maharashtra, (a joint venture company, in which the Company holfds 36% of the paid-up capital) from a
bank. On the basis of information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions whereof are not,
prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

{xi} The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and hence clause (xi) of the Order is not applicable.

{xif) Based on the audit procedures performed and representation abtained from the management, we report that
no case of material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year under audit.

ForV. SankarAiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
{(Firm Regn. No.: 109208W)

Place: New Delhi (M.S. BALACHANDRAN)
Dated: 22-May-2015 Partner @
{M.No:024282)



Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015

Rupees in lacs

Particutars

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital

Reserves and surplus

Non-current liabilities

Long-lerm barrowings

Deferred tax liabilities (MNet)

QOther long term liabilities -Security Payable
Long-term prowisions

Current liahilities
Short-term borrowings
Trade payables

Other current liabilities
Short-term provisions

Taotal

ASSETS

MNon-current assets

Fixed assets

- Tangible assets

- Intangibie assets

- Capital work-in-progress (at cost)
Non-gurrent investments

Long-term joans and advances

Other non-current assets - deposits with banks

Current assets

Current investments
Inventories

Trade receivables

Cash and hank balances
Short-term laans and advances
Other curent assets

Total

Significant Accounting Policies
Other Notes on Accounts

As per our report of even date
For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Regn. No. 109208 W

M. S. Balachandran
Parther
Membership No. 024282

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 22-05-2015

Note No

[ 5]

—
=N

1
30 to 47

DHip K. Banthiya
Chief Financial Officer

Amit Manchanda
Group Head - Legal &
Company Secretary

Ajay K. Agarwal
President (Finance & Accounts}

As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014

2.660.78 2.660.78
80,267 .62 75,445.95
B2 928 40 7810673
32,601.53 42,358.35
7.152.21% 6,953.00
70.61 122.24
BER.TO 521.84
40,413.05 4695543
41,241.30 40,555.02
12,553.90 12,755.55
27,430.78 16,334.42
4,192.50 3,864 .07
85,427.48 73,508.06
208,763.93 201|571.22
54,196.55 53,067.82
3.077.92 3.982.20
80.30 §12.06
480634 5,836.79
14,386.00 1368521
223.30 201.9G
76,770.41 77,553.08
5,000.00 5,000.00
21,302.70 21,031.25
47,780.87 52,331.67
1,032.76 1.528.51
51,408.79 40,347 .54
5473.40 377917
131,998.52 124 218.14
208i768.93 201 !571.22

For and on behalf of Board

Dr. Lalit Khaitan

Chairman & Managing Director

Abhishek Khaitan
Managing Director

Directors



ament of Profit and Loss for the year endad 31st March 2045

Note Ho

INCOME
Revenue from operalions 20
Less : Excisa duty
Other income F 4l
EXPENSES
Cost of maiarials consumed 22
Purchase of stock-in-trade 23
Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in-

24
progress and stock-in-trada
Employee benefits expense 25
Finance costs 5
Depreciation and amortization expanse 27
Other expenses 28
Profit for the year before exceptional items & tax
Less : Exceptianal ltems
Profit for the year hefore taxation
L ess : Tax expense
- Currgnt tax
- For eariier years { written back }
- Deferred tax liability / (assets)
Profit for the year after tax
Basic Earnings per share in Rs. {face value of Rs. 2/- each) 29
Diluted Earnings per share in Rs. {face value of Rs. 2{- each)
Significant Agcounting Policies 1
Other Notes on Accounts 30to 47

As per our report of even date

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.

Rupees in lacs

Curvent Year Previous Year
321,256.23 304,510.79
172,.416.95 159,340.56
148,839.28 145,170.23

4,498.58 3,648.30
153|33?.85 148@18.53
67,078.18 66,652.24
3.921.10 2,204.59
73428 {3.546.81)
10,7258 9.317.97
8,994 49 8.480.95
383174 387534
49,340.14 51,193.20
144!625.13 138,177.58
371273 10,640.95
8,7112.73 10,640.95
1,750.00 3,200.00

- {755.00)

199.21 1,070.00
6|783.52 7!125.95
5.08 5.36

5.08 5.35

For and ¢n behalf of Board

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn, No. 105208 W

M. S. Batachandran
Pairtner
Membership No, 024252

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 22-05-2015

Dilip K. Banthiya
Chlef Financial Officer

Amit Manchanda
Group Head - Legal &
Company Secretary

Ajay K. Agarwal
President {Finance & Accounts}

Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chairman & Managing Director

Abhishek Khaitan
Managing Directar

Directors



Cash Flow for the vear ended 31st March, 2015

A, Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Profit before provisian for tax

Adjustment:

Depreciation and amortization expense

Finance cost

Fareign Exchange Joss cansidered in other expenses
Employees Compensation | ES0P)

Loss on sale of assets

Loss on Sale of Investment

Adjustment for provision for non-moving stock

Adjustment for provision for doubtful debtors and advances
Inigrest incoms

Dividend on investments

Profit on sale of assets

Proflt on sale of investment

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes

Adjusiment For Working Capital Changes:
{Increase)/Decrease in inventories
{Increase}fDecrease in trade receivables
{increase)Tecrease in other receivables
fincrease)fDecrease in loans and advances

{Cecraase)fincrease in trade and other payables

Less: Taxes paid
Net Cash From Operating Activities

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Addition to fiked assets (inclueding work-In-progress)
Sale of fixed assets

Sale of investments

{Increase) Decrease i ipans given

Interest income

Dividend income

Met Cash Generated {Uged) in Invasting Activities

Current Year Previoys Year
8,712.73 10,640.95
3,831.74 3.875.34
5,994 49 8.480.95
1,852,21 1,806.40

13.62 §.22
498.40 254 52
260.67
117.61 {16.5%)

0.23 116.21
{3,926 .90} {3,480.58)
{460 82) {0.21)
{0.25) {0.38)
- (3.15)
19,994.93 21,680.59
{389.06) {2.518.50)
5,625.57 {8.,876.53)
(761.41) 480.07
{4,550.59) 3.668.54
7.670.37 1,923.48
26.689.81 16,356.56
(1,825.35) {2,643.40)
25,060.45 13,713.16
{4,924.70) (7.448.25)

47.81 5712

769.58 25.20
{7,640.00} (9,250.00)
2,994.08 2,585.28

460.82 0.21
(8,292.41) {14,429.84}




£. cash Flow From Financing Activities

Increase / (Decrease) in share capital {including share premium)

Proceeds from leng term borrowings (INR)
Repayment of long term borrowings (INF)

Repaymenl of long term bormawings {ECB)

Short term barrpwings (net)

lvestmenl in nan-current fixed deposits with banks

Finance cost

Dividend on equity shares(including 1ax)

Mat Cash Generated! (Used} in Financing Activities

Net incrsase/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivaients

Balance al the beginning of the year

Balance at the end of the yaar:

CumentYear ~  Previpus Year

. 118.09
- 5,000,00
(3,382.35) {2.611.88)
(4,382.27) {2,501.15)
686.28 10,012.05
{21.400 {52.83}
(8,968.87) (8,373.09)
{1.245.19) {1,244.79)
{17,263.70) 345.50
{49575} (11.18)
1,528.51 1,589.68
1,032.76 1,528.51
(495.75) {117}

Notes: The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect metniod as set out in Accounting Standard-3 on

Cash Flow Slatements.

As per vur report of even date

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 103208 W

M. 5. Balachandran
Partner
Membership No, 024282

Piace : New Delhi
Dated : 22/0502015 4

Dilip XK. Banthiya
Chief Financial Officer

Amit Manchanda

Group Head - Legal &
Company Secretary

Ajay K. Agarwal
President (Finance & fAccounts)

For and on behalf of Board

Dr. Lalit Khaitan
Chairman & Managing Diractor

Abhishek Khaitan
Managing Director

Direciors
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1.02

1.03

1.04

a)
b}

<)

d)

e)
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1.08

Significant Accounting Policies - 2014-15

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention, on accrual basis and in accordance with
the generally accepted accounting principls (GAAP} in india and comply with the accounting slangards specified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2093 (the 2013 Act) f the Companies Act, 1956 (the 1856 Act) as
applicable.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make certaln estimates ang assumptions that
affect the amounts reparted in the financial statements and notes thereto. Diffarences betwesn acival results end
astimates are recognized in the period I which they materialiss.

Fixed assets, intangible assets and capital work-in-progress

Fixed Assels are staled at cost except to he extent revalued. Bomowing costs attributable to the qualifying assets
and all significant costs incidental to the acquisition of assels are capialised. Freehold and Leasehold land at
Rampur, inter alia, were revalued by an approved valuer as on ist January, 1998, Capital work in progress
includes cost of assets at sites, construction expenditure and interest on the funds deployed. intangible Assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment ioss, if any.

Degreciation
i i
Cost of Leasehold fand ard leasehold improvements are amortised over the pariod of fease.

With effect from 01.04.2014, depreciation is provided as per Schedula Il 1o the Companies Act, 2013, on
straight ling methad at with referance to the udefut life of the assets specified thersin.

On addilions costing less than Rs.5000, depreciation is provided at 100% in the year of addition.

Depreciation on amount added on revaluation of assats is transferred from Revaluation Reserve.

{ntangible assels
Sased on the anticipated future economic benefits, the tife of Brands & Trade Mark and Goodwill are amortised
over twenty year on straight line method.

Softwares are amorlised over a peiod of three years on straight line method.

Impairment :

Al each Balance Sheet date, the Cumpany reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assets to determine whether
there are any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. It any such Indication exists,
recaverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of impainment loss.

Investments
Long term investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution in value of long term investment is considersd,

if in the opinion of managemant, such a decling in value is considered as other than temporary In nature. Current
inveslments are valued al lower of cost or fair value.

Inventories

Finished goods and stock-in-process are valued at lower of cost or net realisable walue. Cost includes cost of
conversion and other expenses incurred in bringing the goods 1o Lheir location and condilion. Raw materials,
packing materials, stores and spares ars valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is ascertained an
*moving average” basis for all Inventories.

Revenue recagnition

Sales are recognised o delivery or on passage of tile of the goods to the customars when the risk and reward
siand transferred to customers. They are accounted net of sales tawVAT, trade discourts and rebates tut
inclusive of excise duty.Expart incentives are accounted for on the basis of export sales effected during the year.
interast incoma is accounted on time proportion basis. Dividend income is accounted for, when the right to receive
is established.
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Excise Duty

In respect of stocks covered by central excise, excise duty is provided on closing stocks and also considered for
valuation. In respect of country liquor and IMFL stocks, appliceble State excise duty/ export duty is provided on the
hasis of state-wise despalches identified. In the case of Reclified Spidt/ ENA, it is not ascertainable as to how
much would he converted finaily into country liquor or IMFL or soid as such and also to which particular state or
exported outside India. Duty payable in such cases is not determinable {as it veries depending on the places and
the farm in which these are despacthed). Hence, the exdse duty on such siocks lying in factory is accounled for
oh clearances of such goods. The methad of actounting followed by the Company has no impact on the results of
the year.

Transfer pricing of Bio-Gas ! Power

Singe it is not possitie to compute the actual cost, inter unit transfer of bio-gas & power have been valued on the
basis of savings in direct fuel cost / prevailing purchase price of power. The same has been considered far
vaiuation of inventories.

Treatment of Employee benefits

The Company makes regular contributions to duly constituted funds set up for Provident Fund, Family Pension
Fund, Employees Stale insurance, Superannuation and Gratuity, which are charged to revenue. The employees
are allowed the benefit of leave encashment as per ihe rules of the Company, for which provisien for actruing
fiability is made on actuariat valuation caried out at the end of the year. Contribution to gratully is also determined
on actuarial basis,

Foreign Cusrency Transactlons

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the day of the transaction.
The outstanding liabilities/ receivables are transtated at the year end rates. In the case long term foreign currency
manetary items, relating to acquisition of depreciable cagital assets, the resultant gain or loss is adjusted to cost of
respectiva capitai asset and in the case of ather long term foreign currency manetary items, tha resultant gain or
toss is transferred to Foreign currency monetary item translation difference account' and transferred to revenue
over the period of long termn foreign currency monetary item. In the case of other monetary foreign currency items,
the resultant gain or loss are adjusied to the statemenl of Profit & Less. Non-monetary items denominalad in
foreign currency, {such as fixed assets) are valued at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of ransaction. Any
gain or losses arising due to exchange differences arising on transiation or settlement are accounted for in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of forward exchange contracts, the premium or discount arising at the
inception of such conlracts, is amoriised as income or expense aver the petiod of contract and exchange
ditference on such contracts, i.e. difference between the exchange rate at the reporting / settlement date and the
exchange rate on the date of inception / the last reporing date, is recognized as income / expenses for the period.

Berivative Transactions

These transactions are undertaken lo hedge the cost of borrowing and comprise of principal / interest rate
swaps.The income / expenses are recognised as & when garned / incurred. In case of outstanding derivative
contracts at the yaar end date, loss is delermined on marked to market {MTM) basis and provision made.

Leases
Since sighificant portion of risks and rewards are retained by lessor in respect of assets acquired on lease, they are
ciassified as operating lease and the lease rentals are charged off to revenua account.

Ressarch and Development
Eixed assels used for Research and Development are depreciated In the same mannar as in the case of similar
assels; the revenue expenses are charged off in the year of incurrance.

Taxatien

Pravision is made for defarred tax for all timing differences arising between taxable income ang accounting incoms
al cumently enacted or substantially enacted tax rates. Deferred lax assels are recognized. only if there is
reasanable | virtual certainty that they will be reafized and are reviewed for the approprigleness of their respective
carrying values at each Balance Sheet date.

Provisions, Contingent Llabilities and Contingent Assets

Pravisions involving substantial dagras of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present
obligation as & result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent
liabilities are not recognized bul are disclosed in the notes to accounts. Coniingertl assets are neither recoghized
nor disclosed in the financial statements.



Notes on Accounts for the year ended 31.03.2015 )
Rupees in lacs

As at As at
31.03.2015 31,03.2014

2 Share Capital

Authorised

+7,00,00,000 {Previous year 17,00,00,000) squity shares of Rs. 2/- each 3.400.00 3.400.00

60,00,000 (Previous year 60,00,000) preference shares of Rs. 100/- each §,000.00 6,000.04
8,400.00 9,400.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid

13,30,38,765 (PY 13,30,38,765) equity shares of Rs. 2/~ each 2 680.78 2,660.78
2,660.78 2,660,78

a. The Company has issued only one class of shares, referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2/-. Each
halder of equity shares is entitled 1o one vote per share.

b. The Gompany declares and pays dividend in Indian rupses. The dividend proposed by the Board of Direcfors is subject to
the approval of the sharehotders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

¢. During the ygar anded March 31, 2015, the amount of dividend per share recognized for distribution to equity sharebolders
is Rs. 0.80 fprevious year Rs. (.80) per share.

d. Reconciliation of the number of shares No. of Shares No, of Shares
Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 133,038,765 132,900,380
Add: Issued during the year under ESOP Scheme - 138,385
Outstanding at the endg of the year 133,038, 765 132,038,765
a. Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shar No. of Shares Ng. of Shares
Sapphire Intrex Ltd. 2547% 33,888,011  2547% 33,888,011
Shailaja Finance Ltd. 5.64% 11,491,087 8.64% 11,481,087
Reliance Capital Trustee Company Lid. B.49% 11,296,871 6.24% 8,305,811
HSBC Global Investment Funds Mauritius Ltd, 7.50% 0,980,624 7.50% 9,980,624

f Shares reserved for issue under options: ESOPs

The Company established Employee Stock Options Plan, duly approved by the shareholders in tha meeting held on
25.05.2006 which is effactive from 25.07.2006. Accordingly, the Company has granted 36,50,000 equity options upto
31.03.2015 which will get vested over a period of 4 years from the date of the grant. The employees have the options 1o
exercise the right within a period of 3 ysars from the date of vesting. The compensation cost of stock options granted 1o
employees are accounted by the Company using the intrinsic value method.

Summary of Steck Option % Nc_.;ingpi
Option granted upto the year end 3,650,000 3,850,000
Options forfeited upto the year end 1,540,611 1,503,588
Options exercised upto the year end 1,903,549 1,903,549
Opticn outstanding at the year end 205,940 242,885
Exercise price {weighted average) Rs. 80.58 Rs. 80.58

In respect of Options granted under the Empioyee Stock Options plan, in accordance with the guidetines issued by SEB,
the accounting value of the options is accounted as defsrmed amployss compensation, which is amorlized on a straight line
basis over the period between the date of grant of oplions and efigible dates far conversion into equity shares.
Consequenily, Employee benefits sxpense { Note no. 25) includes Rs. 13.62 lacs dabit (Previous year Rs.5.22 iacs debit}
being the amortisation of defsrred employee compensation.



rveg an
Capital Regerve

Balance as per last balance sheet

Prefere
Balance as per last balance sheet

hares Re

dion Reserv

Securities Premium Reserve
Balance as per iast balance shest

Add : Receipts on sxercise of employee stock options
Add ; Transfer from employee steck aption outstanding account

Revaluation Reserve
Balance as per last balance sheat

Less ; Transfar being depreciation on revalued assets (Refer Note 27)

Em

Gross employee stock compensation for options granted in earlier years

tock Opii

tandin.

Lass : Deferred employee stock compensation

Less : Transfer io securities premium reserve on exercise of stock opliens

ENgT;

Ve

Balance as per last balance sheet

Add : Transfer from Surplus

Surplus

Balance as per last balance sheet
Less : Adjusiment relating to Depreciation { See note 27)
Add : Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss

Less ; Appropriations

Transfer to general reserve
Dividend paid relaling to earlier year #

Tax on above #
Proposed dividend

Tax on proposed dividend

Rupees in lacs

# Represents dividend paid on shares allotted subsequent to year end, but before declaration of dividand

n

Ten

itern

ion differen:

nt
{Refer Note 33)

As at Az at
31.03.2015 31.0 4
1,213.68 1,213.68
20.02 20.02
37.469.28 37.330.32
115.32
- 23.64
37.,460.28 37,469.28
809.22 915.58
38.47 6.26
870.75 909.22
41.09 69.78
- 14.67
N 23.64
41.09 27.47
30,000.00 25,000.00
5,000.00 5,000.00
35,000.060 30,000.00
9,850.91 8,981.05
{1,494.25) -
8,763.52 7,125.95
15,130.14 16,107.00
5,000.00 5,000.00
- 0.84
- .08
1,064.21 1,064 .31
21667 1B0.88
8.849.18 8.850.91
{3,196.36) (4,054 .63)
BIJ|267.62 75l445.95



4 lLong-term Borrowings

Term Loans - Secuyr see No low
- Rupee igans from banks

- Rupee loans from others

- Foreign currency loans from banks

Rupees in lacs

Less : Shown in current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note 9)

- Rupee loan from banks
- Rupee loans from cthars
- Foreign currency toans from banks

i Notes

As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
5,250.00 8,750.G0
4,117.65 5,000.00
33,316.54 36,075.52
43,684.29 49 82552
2.500.00 2.500.00
1,176.47 882.35
7.406.29 4084.82
32|601.53 421353.35

i). The above loans are secured by a pani-passu first charge on gross block of fixed assets of the Company, bath prasent

and future.

ii}. Non-fund based facilities provided by banks are also secured by & second charge on the fixed assels of the Company

iii}. Term of repayment and interest are as foliows:-

Name

D81 Bank Ltd. - Rupse Tenn Loar

State Bank of Hyderabad - Rupes Term Loan

Aditya Bida Finance Ltd.

|CHCI Bank Lid (ECBY. Qustanding: $160.00 fakhs
ICICI Bank Ltd {ECB); Outstandng $241.04 lakbs
State Bank af India (ECB). Culstanding $131.25 lakhs

5. Defe Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Related to fixed assets

Deferred Tax Assets:
ECB adjustment

Provisign for gratuity and leave encashment
Provision for doubtful debts and others

Deferred Tax Liability (Net)
ong-term Pr ions

Provision for employee benefits.
- Leave encashment {Refer Note 36}

Balance Qutstanding Outstanding
Year of
ROI  Instalm Maturity as on as on
ants 31.03.2015 31.3.2014
12.00% 100 July 2017 3,125.00 4,375.00
1270%  109Q Aug 2017 3,125.00 4,375.00
1218% 140 Aug 2018 4117.65 5,000.00
LIBOR+3.75% 13Q Al 2018 10,014.53 10,817.97
LIBOR+3.92% 140 July 2018 16,087.07 16,242.58
LIBOR+3.80% THY July 2018 8,215.04 9,014.97
43 ,684.29 44 825.52
B,914.44 848874
8914 .44 8,488.74
987.90 939.13
383.03 273.27
381.30 323.34
1,762.23 1,535.74
7.162.21 6,953.00
588.70 521.84
39870 82188




Rupees in lacs

Agat Asat
31.03.2015 31.03.2014

7 _Short-term Borrowings

Becured - from Banks #

- Cash credit (repayable on damand) 30,241.30 34,055.02

- Others - 1,500.00

nsecured

- from banks 11,000.00 5,000.00

411241 .30 40,555.02

# Loans from banks - secured by hypothecation of inventories and book debts. Further secured by a second charge
an fined assets of the Company.

8. Trade Payables

Due to Micro and Small enterprises (Refer Note below) - ' -

Cthers # 12,553.90 12,755.55
12,553.90 12,755.55

# The Company has not received information from suppliers or service providers, whether they are covered under Micro,
Smail and Mediumn Enierprises (Development) Act, 2006 and hence it has not been possible to ascertain the requirad
information relating to amounts unpaid, if any, as at year end together with interest paid or payable to them.

her C ighilitie:

Current maturities of long-term debt

- Rupee loan from banks 2.500.00 2 500.00
- Rupee ioan from others 117647 882.35
- Foreign currency loans from banks 7.406.29 4,084.82
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 260.99 323.78
Interest accrued end due on borrowings 137.38 48.96
On account of capital goods/ services 33135 423.27
Advances from custorers and others 13.707.89 6,198.95
Unglaimed dividends # 103.01 g3.1
Qther payables
- Security deposits 583.83 3g7.20
- Accrued salary and benefits 299.48 355.71
- Statutory dues 931.09 1,036.26
27,439.78 16,334.42

# This does not include any amount due and autstanding, to be cradited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
10, Short-term Provisions

For employee benefils.

- Gratuity (See Note 26) 262.30 84.36
- Leave encashment (See Note 36} 221.40 172.84
Prapased dividend 1,064.31 1,064.3%
Tax an proposed dividend Z16.67 18058
For excise duty on closing stock 2,420.48 2,354.32
Other contingencies 7.36 7.36

4,192.50 3,064.07
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Rupeas in lacs

As at . As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2094
12 MNon Current Invesiments
{At cost) (Unquotad)
i) Trade Investments
Equity Shares of Joint Venture Company
Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited - 26,59,500 {previous 2,805.74 2,805.74
year: 26,59,500) equity shares of Rs, 100 each, fully paid up, (See
foot note given below)
Equity Shares of Associate Company
Radico Global Limited - NIL (Previous year: 89,964} equity - 1,030.45
shares of AEC100 each, fuliy paid up - incorporated in Jebel Ali
Free Zone, Dubai (ceased to be an associate w.ef.30.03.2015)
Preferen hares of Joint Venture Compan’
Radico NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited - 20,00,000 {Previous 2,000.00 2.000.00
year: 20,00,000} 10% cumulative, non-convertible preference
shares of Rs.10{ each, fully paid up
4,805.74 5835.18
ii) Non-trade investments
New Lirban Cooperative Bank Ltd. - 2,388 (Previous year. 2,388) 0.60 080
equity shares of Rs. 25 each, fully paid up
0.60 0.60
4|306.34 5,836.78

Foot Mote

13.56,385 Equity shares (Previous year: 13,56,385) of Radico NV Distilleries Maharashira Ltd. have been pledged with

a bank as secUrity for loans granted o them

13_Long-term loang and advances

{Unsecured- Considered gaod unless otherwise stated )

Capital Advances 10,605.17

Radico NV Distilleries Maharashira Limited {Joint Venture) 1.000.00

Security Deposits 1.426.84

Prepaid expenses 166.62

incoma Tax { Net of provisions } 231.64

MAT credit available for sat off {refer note - 35} 952.50

Advances recoverable in cash or kind 313
14,386.00

10,164.20
1.000.00
1.137.08

239.80
152.29
952.50

6.44

1365231



rrent | ments
{At lower of cost or fair value)

Non Trade - Unquated

Certificate of deposit with a financial institution (SICOM Ltd)

15 Inventories
{Refer Note 1.07 on valuation)

Raw matarials

Stock in pracess

Finished goods

Slock-in-frade

Staores & spares

Packing materials

Goods in transit - Raw material

Less: Provision for obsolete and non moving inventory

6 Tr vables
{Unsecured- Considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the due date

- Unsecured, considered goad
- Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubiful debts

Others

Rupees in lacs

As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014

5,000.00 5,000.00
5,000.06 5.000.00
6,894.53 5,769.29
1.411.35 1,440.86
9,362.29 10,174.05
172.98 65.99
1,834.03 1,673.28
1,852.00 1,763.57
- 51.08
21,527.18 21,138.12
224.48 106.87
21,302.70 21,031.25
9,068.08 10,780.58
238.77 713.54
$,306.85 11,494 .12
{238.77) (T13.54)
38,7127% 41,551.09
—tLuZB0AT, e 5233467



17 Cash and Bank Balanges

Balances wilh banks

- in current accounts

- interm deposits #

- in unpaid dividend accounts

Cash on hand

Less: Deposits with mare than 12 months maturity shown under
other non-current assets

# Deposit ingluges
Under len with Government depariment and banks as security,

18, Short-term Loans and Advance:
{Unsecured- Considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Loans and advances to related parlies
- Radica NV Distilleries Maharashtra Limited {Joint Venture)
- Radico Global Limited (Associate il 30-03-2015)
Advances recoverable in cash or kind:
- Considered good #
- Considered douwbtful
Less: Provision for doubtful adgvance
Intar corporate deposits (See note 44)
Advances to Contract Bottling Units #
- Considered good #
- Considered doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful advance
Other Loans and Advancas
- Sales tax paid under proiest
- Claims and Duties Recoverable from Excise Depariment
- Dther balances recoverable from Statutory/ Government authorities
- Security Deposits
- Prepaid expenses

# includes due from Radico NV Distilleries Maharaghira Lid | a Joint Venure

19 rrent assets
{Unsecured - Considered good}

Interest accrued on

- term deposits

- joans and advances
Accrued export incentives

Other Receivables considered Good
- Sales consideration of Investments receivable from a corporate
- Unamortised premium on forward Contracts

Rupees in lacs

As at As at
31.03.201 31.03.2014
71770 1.2556.96
414.81 349.78
106.37 93.47
18.18 31.20
{223.30) {201.90)
1,032.76 1 I52!!.51
414 81 349.78
20.07 37.96
- 480.80
2,539.23 2.830.52
117.67 117.67
{117.67) (117.87)
16,990.00 9,350.00
16,874.63 20,956.53
550.00 75.00
{550.00) (75.00)
17.88 17.88
1315545 4.805.18
111.11 165.27
29.79 28374
1,661.63 4,318.66
51,408.79 40,347.54
1,281.44 1,776.83
43.42 48,72
2,396.70 1,458.58
226370 2,209.65
768.56 -
- 62.22
5I4?3.40 3{!?9.17



20 Revenue from Operatigns
{Refer Note 1.08 on revenue recognition)

Sale of

- Aleonol and other alcoholic products
- Pet bottles & caps

- Jaivik khad

- Printed bottles

- Olhers (Blends & Others)

Sale of traded goods
- Indian Made Foreigh Liquor

- Alcohal

- Imported Liguor

Income from Operations through Other Distliletias
{ Bottling Units (See note no.46)

Other eperating revenues
- Export incentives

- Cenvat credit utitised

- Scrap sales

21 1 Income

Interest ingome on
- Term deposit with banks and financial institutions

- Loans and advances (including inter corporate deposits)
Dividend income on non-current {irade) investments

Profit on sale of current investments

Profit on sale of fixed assets

Excess provisions written back

Miscellangous income

22. Cost of Matenal it ed
Raw Materials

Opening Stock
Add: Purchases

Less: Closing Stock
Raw material consurned

Packing materials consumed

Rupees in lacs

Currgnt Year Previous Year
290,527.60 374,219.82
6,820.88 6,532.18
184,39 132.27
2,192.45 2,194 .45
51343 141815
96665 1,160.30
3,384 .74 1,197.52
454.85 642,41
11,822.15 13,062.43
221115 2,155.29
71822 694,18
1,393.72 1,101.79
321,256.23 304,510.79
506.82 505.53
3,420,08 2.975.05
460.82 0.21
- 315
0.25 0.36
22.08 107.11
88.53 56.89
4,498.58 3,648.30
5,769.29 6,058.74
44,064.77 40,786.30
49,834.06 47.745.04
6,804 .53 5,769.29
42.639.53 41,975.75
24,138.66 24 676.59
67,078.19 66,652.34

T, ST —



Rupees in lacs

Cusrent Year Previous Yagr
23. Purchage of Traded Goods
Indian made forgign liguor 941 64 982.84
Alcohol 2.829.29 1,082.57
imported Liguar 15017 139.18
3,921,140 2,204.59
24. Changes i wventories of Trade Finished Go: Hn-pr
Opening Stock
Stoch-in-trade (Traded goods) £5.99 304.63
Finished goods 10,174.05 6.456.70
Stock in process 1,440.86 1,372.76
i1,680.80 8,134,089
: Clgsing Stack
Stock-in-trade {Traded goods) 172.98 65.99
Finished goods 9,362.28 10,174.05
Stock in process 1411.35 1,440,86
10,846.62 11,680.9¢
734.28 i3,546.81)
25. Employee Benefits Expense
{Refer Note 1.11 on smployee benefits)
Salaries, wages and allowances 9.412.31 831413
Contribution to provident and ather funds 583.28 522.78
Gratuity 376.34 138.45
Emgployee siock aplions scheme - (Refer Note 2) 13.682 8.22
Staff welfare expenses 339.64 33439
10,725.19 9,317.97
26.Finance Costs
Interest expense 8,777.42 8,288.58
Cther pborrowing costs 217.06 192.37
8.994.49 8,480.95
27. Depr ion and amortization expense
Depreciation of tangible assets 4210.21 341068
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,154.29 471.02
5,364.50 3,881.70
Less:- Adjusted against Surplus (Refer Note 11) 1,494 28 -
Less: Transfer from revaluation reserve 3847 6.36
3.831.74 3.875.34

[Rim—



28. Otherexpen

Fower and fuel
Slores and spares consumed
Repairs and mairtenance

- Building

- Plant and equipment

- Others
Machinery and other hire charges
Insurance
Rent
Rates and taxes
Trawvsiling - Directars

« Others

Directors’ fee
Foreign exchange fluctuations (net)
Provision for Neh-moving/ obsolete Inveniory
Obsolete and non moving inventory writter off
Less : Adjusted against provisions
Charity and donation
Corporate Social Respansibility Expenses {Refer note 45)
Provision for doubtful debts / advances
Bad debts / advances written oft
Less: Adjusted against provision
Bio composting expenses
Profgesional Fee & retaingrship expenses
Communication
Sundry balances written off
Lass on Sale of Non-cusrent (Trade) Investment
Loss on sale / write off of agsets
Bank charges
Increase / (Decrease) of excise duty on Finished Goods
Boltling charges relating to leased units
Other overheads
Selling and distribution:

- Freight outwards

- Supervision charges - after sales

- Bypervision charges to supervisors

- Rehate discount and allowance

- Advartisement & sales promotion

Rupees in lacs

Current Year

Previoys Year

2,91B.67 2,758.75
3,289.01 3,299.30
116.44 195.93
1,247.03 1,360.03
188.00 11477
199.32 184.53
435,62 373.49
465.81 456.95
2,999.87 2,958.15
90.43 82.02
92897 872.92
12.80 4.75
2,056.79 2.093.08
147,61 -
17.57
. {16.95)
13.80 28.98
+38.74 .
475,00 505.29
606.12 690.91
{474.77) {479.08)
321.05 412.86
452.58 674.20
185.04 179.50
83.30 116.85
260.87 -
§07.23 254,52
49.62 40.21
66.14 2,354.32
1,038.86 1,064 18
2,086.25 1,916.24
6,629.68 6,253.11
1,032.80 1,107.16
916.71 1,652.72
8.848.49 7.362.40
10.733.26 12,843 54
49,340.14 51,193,20




rnin er

Profit after tax attribulable to equity share holders
{after deducting prior period and extra ordinary
iterng} - for Basic EPS

Profit after tax atiributable to equity share holders

{atter deducting prior period and extra ordinary
iterns) - for Diluted EFS

Basic weighted average no. of equity shares of Rs,
2f- sach

Diluted weighted average no. of equity shares of
Rs. 2}~ each

Basic eaming per share {Rs)
Diluted earning per share (Rs)
Since the potential equity on account of ESOP was

anti dilutive in the cument year, the diluted earning
remains tha same as Basic (Rs).

Rupees in lacs

Previous Year

Current Year
6,763.52
B777.14

133,038,765
133,244 705
5.08
5.08

7,125.98

713417

132,958 289

133,240,227

5.36

5.35



Diher Notes on Accoynis

30
3
)
a)
{0)

ic)

{d}
{e}

(@)
th}

ii}

K}

v}

Estimated amount of Capital commilments { Net of advances }

Contingent Liabilities not provided for:

Claims against the Company, not ach dedged as debts

Disputed fiability retating i ESE Contribution

Digpuled ligbilily refating to PF conlribulion of conlraclor labour

Disputed kability relating ta payment of lale re-cafibration fees on verification and
stamping of manufacturing vats/Aanks installed al distitlery.

Disputed claim relating 1o refund of export duty on rectified spirt

Disputet VAT/Ssles/Entry Tax matters under appeal

Disputed Excise matters

Disputed Stamgp duty daim arising out of amalgamation, being contested

Disputed demands on accaunt of service tax including interest and penalty thereon
for the period July 2003 1o March 2012, being contested and undsr appeal

In respect of the ilems abave, future cash culflows are determinable only on receipt
of judgements / decisions pending &t various forums / authorities.

Madhya Pradesh State Industrial Development Corparation Ltd. in February 2007
demanded a sum of Rs.168.09 lacs besidss unspecified expenses arsing out of the
alteged non campliance of conditions relating to its holding of shares in Abhishek
Cement Ltd. prior to the merger of Radico Khaitan L. in the year 2002-03. The writ
petition filed by Company before Madhya Pradesh high court has been parly
allowed by confirming the recovery of Rs 167.32 lacs against the Company.
However, the division bench of Madhya Pradesh high court has stayed the recovery
praceedings initiated by local collector office. The court has ordered to maintain Rs
100 lacs in Slate Bank aof India till the final adjudication of the matter, The malter is
since sub-judice.

The Company has filed legal suits aganst recovery of its dues fram trade
receivable, rontract bolllers and other parties aggregating to Rs.1376.39 Lakhs,
witich are in the opinion of Management recoverable znd no malenal losses are
faraseern.

The Commissioner Service Tax New Delhi had issued fusther show cause notice on
$2.05 2014 on the Company demanding Service Tax of Rs 2647.22 Lacs plus
interest and penally under business auxiliary service for the period April 2012 lo
March 2013, The Company s in the process of replying to the show cause notice.

In respect of the items above, fulure cash putflows are determinable only on receipt of
judgaments [ decisions pending at various farums { authorities.

v}

i)

Guarantee! security given to Banks on behalf of Radico NV Distilleries
Maharashtra Ltd:

&) Corparate Guarantes (for [oans avaited by the /v Company}

b) As co-obiigant for vehicie toan {for loans avaited by the JV Company)

The Company entered into an agreement dated 23rd February, 2007 with Fortune
Brand Promaotion And Management Trust {(the Trusly, (of which the Company is the
Selller) for carrying oul brand management services. In consideration of the same,
the Company was required to pay brand management fee to the Trust Sales
promotion expenses for the year include Rs.611.97 lacs (Previous year R5.1709.24
lacs) paid to the Trust on the basis of their invoices. Dufing the year the Srand
Promotion and Managemenl agreement wilh trust has been terminaied.

As securty, charge by way of hypothacation has been created on the trade marks
and copy rights of two salf generated brands of the Company in favour of a Bank
and registered in the office of Registrar of Companies as per section 125 of the
Companies Act 1956, Post termination, the charge created on the brands has been
cleared.

Rupees in lacs

2014-15 2013-14
1,625.08 68.22
0.8 0.88
3304 33.04
88.00 88.00
10.62 10.62
2,078.08 0.58
348,52 392,64
80.00 80.00
15,371.50 10,865.61
18,011.683 11,480.69
237.60 1.044.00
- 3534
- 1,406.25



vi] Under the "Receivable buyout” faciity of Rs 6000.00 lacs sanctioned by DB}

32

33

34

35

Bank Ltd. agsins! trade receivables from Canteen Stores Department & Stals
Corporalion {dirscl sales/sales through Contract Bottiing Units), the amount availed
and eutstanding as on 31st March, 2015 have been set off against the receivables
and advances to CBUs. The amourt cutslanding as an the Bslance Sheet date is

In the opinlon of the Managament and to the best of their krowledge and betef, the
value on realisation of current assets, joans and advances in the ordinary course of
business would ot be less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance
Sheet.

Pursuant 1o the amendment by way of addilion of paras 46 and 4BA 10 AS-11 on
offect of changes in foreign exchange rates, the Company had excercised the oplion
of deferring the foreign exchange Auctuation gain { loss in respect of the accounting
periods commencing from 04.04.2007. Further, such foreign exchange diffarences
relating to acquisition of depreciable capital assets have been adjusted 1o the cost
of such assets and depreciated over the batance Ffe of the assets.

As a result, foreign sxchange loss (including arising on account of loan repayment)
of Re 479.45 lacs {previous yesr Rs 113158 lacs) long term fofeign cumency items
periaining to tapilzl assets has been adjusted to fixed assels. Out of the foreigh
cumency monstary items translalion difference account of Rs.4229.46 lacs (debit)
{previous year Rs.5524.02 lacs), as on 31.03.2015, a sum of Rs 1033.09 lacs
{previous year Rs.1469.30 lacs) has been debited (o joss on foreign exchange
fluctuation accounl during the year,

The Company has taken premises on operaling lease. The lease paymenls
charged during the yeer to the Statement of prafit and loss accounl amounis 1o Rs
489.57 lacs. (Provious Year. Rs.473.03 lacs). Amount due within one year Rs
366.61 lacs.

Inzome Tax -

Provision for Income Tax for the year has been made as per section 115JB of the
Income Tax Act, 1962 {MAT). The Company can avail the benefit of unutilized MAT
credit of Rs 952 .50 |acs within the period provided in law.

2014-15

2013-14

5.099.85

2.749.42
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Emplo itg : AS-15

The Company has taken & policy with LHa insurance
Corporation of Indla (LIC) for meeting the accruing Habillty
on account of gratuity, The premium,  actuarally
ascerlained by LIC, is charged o the Slatament of profit
and foss. The amount debited to profit & loss agcount is
Rs, 376.34 lacs.

in respect of leave encashment, provision 1= made based
on the actusrial valuation by an independent Actuary. Tha
following information as required under AS-15 are basad
on the report of the Actuary /L.1.C.

Laave Encashment

Economic assumptons
Discounting rale

Future salary increase
Expacted rate of retum on plan assets

Break ug of expanses

Current service cogt

Interast cost

Mat acluanat {gain)f loss recognized in the period
Expenses recognized n the staternent of profit & loss

Changg in pr 1 value of ablig

Pregent value of obligation as at the beginning of the
period D1/G2014

Interest cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid

Acluarial (gainpioss on obligation

Preserd value of obligation as at the end of period
INI2E

Gratyity

Economic assumptions

Ciscounting rate

Future salary increase

Expecied rate of relum on  plan assets

Break up of axpenzes
Current service oost

Inlerest cosl

Expected ratuen on plan assets

Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the pariod
Expenses racognized in the statement of profit & Ioss

Changa in present value of abligation
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the
pedod D1/04/2014

Interest cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid

Acluarial {gain)floss on obligation

Presenl value of obligation as at the end of perlad
310372015

Change in fair value of plan asssts

Fair value: of plan assels at the beginning of the year
Expected retumn on plan assets

Contriputions

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assels al the end of the year
Liability recognised in the balance sheel

Rupses in lacs

1.03.201 1.03.20%4
775% 8.50%
5.25% 6.00%
0.00% 0.08%
7081 7577
59.08 45.00
£1.53 95.72

20039 216,49
694 58 562 51
5905 45.00
79,81 75.77
{84571 (B4.32
#1.53 95.72
10,10 694 58
2.00% 8.00%
5.00% 5.00%
2.40% 9400
80.05 72.06
8057 8375
(87.00) 73,40}
30232 0.0
376,34 138.45
101207 BTANS
3097 66.76
8805 7206
(38.0%) 7181
302.32 70.03
143738 101207
927.71 82434
8700 7340
198.40 10177
(38.03) (74 B0
1,175.08 $27.71
26235 84 36
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The Company in additlon has recogniced as expense
the following:-

Contibuion to recognised Provident Fund ({inlouding
Family Pension)

Contribution to LIC towards Superannuation.

Medical insurance pramium.

Caontribution Lo Employees Stale insurance

Segmant reporting :

Based on the guideline in Accountling Standard oh
segment reporting { AS- 17), the Company's primary
business segment ls manufacture and trading In liguor.
The liquor business incorporates the product groups.
namely, rectified spiril, country liquor and IMFL which
malnly have similar risks and retuns. Therefore, segment
reparting |8 nol applicable.

Related parties and their relationship :

Entarprises that direclly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediades,contral, or are controlled by, or are undet
common control with, the reperting enterprise |

Associales and Joint Ventures

Key Manangameant personnel :

Relatives :

Transaction with above in the ordinary course of
business :

Key Manangement Personnel |
r, Lalit Khail hai n i i 4
Remunaration

MA i Khaitan . Managing O

Remuneraticn
K.P_Singh i i
Remuneration

Mrg. j Khaltan (wi r ishek
Remuneralion

Mrs, Shaila (D . i
Ramuneralion

M. Padm; nggli f

Dr Lalit Khaitan )

Remuneration

Rupsss Ih lacs

31.03.2015 31.03.2014
367,62 326.06
181.70 168.73
91.56 107.50
33.86 2799
(1) Sapphire Infrex Lid.
{1} Radico NV Distillaries Maharashtra Limited
(2} Radico Global Limited ( Associala)
{13 Or, Lalit Khaitan , Chairman & Managing Dirgclor
(2] Wr. Aphishek Khaitan, Managiry Biracter
{3 Mr. ¥.P.5ingh , Whola Tima Direciar
(4] Mrs. Shailaja Seraf , Diractor
{1} Mrs. Deepshikha Khailan (Wifa of Mr Abhishek Kheitan)
Rupsss In lacs
il R 1EH 31.03.20%4
36288 36343
358.22 34217
132,83 10854
14.27 1418
2.83 .04
2285 19.27
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Enterprises that diractly, or indirectly through one or
more | Jlaries,control, or are trollad by, or
are undar common control with, the reporting

anterprise ;

Sapphire Intrex Lid,

Security Receivable

Rent Pald (excluding service tax of Rs 4.08 lacs bome by
the Company.)

Asspclates and Joloy Ventures
Radi istillerigs Mah iml
Sala of Goods

fRaimbursemant af IT support chargas ( Cr )

Tie-up oparation incoma (net of bottling charges)
Dividend Income on Prefarence Shates

Putehase of materials

Receivabie

Payable

Guaranlea! Securily given by Radico Khaitan Limited

Radico Global Ltd,

Loan outstanding et the end of the year

Inlarast accrued and qutslanding at the end of the ysar
Interest incoma for the year

The details of the Company's | it In itw Joint
Venturas, having Jeint Control, as par the
requirements of AS-27 on Flnancisl Raeporting of
Interest In Joint Ventures are as undar : {Un-audited)

Particulars

% Cwnership Inlersst

Assels

Liablities

Incame

EXpanses

Cantingent Liabilities
Capltal Commitments

40 Rwsmuneration to Auditors

41

Audit Fee

Cerlification of Statements
Service 1ax

Expenses for audil and other work

Cosl Audit Fee
Expansas for Cast Audit

in the cpinden of the management, thare Is no impalment
of assels requiring provision in accordanca with AS-28.

60.00

54,08

50395
a2
155643
46082
377084
2,310.52
2270
237.60

2T

60.00

5000

414,43
40.13
1,25761
217511
2.814.79
4276
107834

48080
Ba.o1
20.34

Radico HV Distilleries
Maharsshtrs Ltd,

Unaudited
0335 31032004
36.00%
12,801 .54
4,334.74
1047540
992814

22954
48.56

H.032018

22.50

6.00
352
5.1

1.24
0.34

Unaudited

36.00%

12,223.05
5,381.82
9,005.58
B467.80

71215
192 44

31.03.2014

2250
6.00
3.52
3Bz

129
007



42 Quantitative and other Information

a)

b)] Opaning Stock, Clealng Stock & Tumover

Note: Figures in brackels are those of pravious year,

Particulars of Capacity and Productlon

1. Molasses { Grain / Malt spint

3. Bio gas

4, Pet botllas

* A4 cartified by the Management anc not verified by the Auditors.

1. Alcohol products
{a} Recliflad spirt

(b} Sllenl spirit

{c) Cane juica spirit

(9} Malt spiril

{e) Graln spirit

{f) Ethanol

2. Other alcohal praducts
(a) Denatured spirit

(b} Indian made foreign liquor

(¢} Courdry liquar

(d) Imported Alccholie products

3. Pet bottles and Caps

4. Jaivik Khad

5. Cihers

6. Other operating income

Total:

-

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

Licensed Inntallvd*
Unit Capaciy pef annusm Proguction .
KLBL AT 94% 102,450 102,460 BO,137
(102,450} (102,450) (80,773)
KLiAL 96,312 56,312 75,328
88,312} (96,312} (85.327)
000 "M3 Ny licence reguinsd 28,180
(38,361}
HOS.M1000 Mo Noancs required 600,000 532188
{600,000} {495,547)
Unit Opanliny Stock Closing Stock Tumovet
ni
Qty Valuw Qty Valus Oty Valua
KLAL 295 96,98 374 11718 259 78.66
{1,198} {344 48) {286) (36.98) (2.134) 603,96}
KUAL 5,369 2,073.83 5439 2,075.88 29,336 16,423.58
{2,027) {677.00) (5.369) (2.073.83} (30,567  (15.770.38)
KLIAL 137 8202
{1 (63.35)
KLraL 1,874 2.513.04 BE3 217420 323 T45.33
(1,455} (2,805.20) (1,274 (2.513.04) {az1)y (99838}
KUAL 3,068 145538 2413 141830 168,037 7.461.75
12, 540) 11.056.61) 3.058) [1,485.38) {15,650) [7.184.87)
KLIAL 0 0.0 - - - -
o) [UARY] ) (0.09) - -
KUAL 1 .27 1 o0zr - -
{1} {0.30) &3] 0.27) - -
AL 1,955,704 3,866.20 948,085 373 38,795,029 17117838
{581,038} (143881 (1,155.704) {3.866.20) (38,618,907) (16647098}
A 24427 17.24 TAT3 443 14,978 203 88,771.07
{16,882} 1080 [24,427) (17.24)  (14,121350)  (85,508.30)
Botties 8.a77 17.42 30,694 BE.56 109,027 454,85
(39,663 (420.33) {8.977) {17.42) {156,840} 241}
NDS, 8,308,610 164,800 11,027 451 176.15 288,208,565 6,820.88
(11,174,120} (200.20)  (B,I0BE10} [164.88)  (272,801.485) {6,523.64)
Qs 8,005 4.84 163 Q.16 247,861 184,30
(175.753) (109,50} {8,005) {4.64) (218,179} {132.27)
2,832.07
{4,831 .38)
16,241.23
{15.811.88)
10,240.04 9,535.27 321,256.23
({E,761.33) (10,240.04) [304,510.78)




RADICO KHATANLIMITED

Purchazes: -
- Indian Made Foreign Liguar
- Imported Liguors
- Alcohal

d) Cansumplion of raw materiaks

{1} Molasses

(i} Cane julce
(ili) Barley Malt
{iv) Sarghum

v} Broken Rice
(wi) Millet (Bajra)
{vil) Maize

{viiliMalt Malt Scolch/Grain/Graipe Spirls

(ix) Rectified pirit f Extra Neutral Alcchal
(x) Resin

{xi) Praas Mud

(x} Others.

b Valua of imports calculated on CIF basis:

Raw malerials
Components & spare parts
Purchases

Capltal goods

f]  Expenditure in foreign curtancy on account of

Forzlgn travel & subscrptions
Interest/Financial exp. on ECB
Professsional fee

Commission pald / Insurance paid
Loan to an Associata Company
Fraight

Others

g) Valus of imported and indigencus raw materials, spare
parts components and stores consumed during tha year

Imported

Indigenous

Mote: Figures in brackets are thase of previous year.

Wnit

Cases
Boitles
BL

Currant Year
Quantity Vulue

54,534 4164
130,844 150.17
5,727,000 2.423.29
382110

2,101,362 11,889.78
10,737 1.2
14,550 39104
o4 4.00

425,311 £,963.04
115,464 1,324.72
2521 4077.23

- 143197
- 9.006.18
7,738,153 7.400.13
1.0508,539 42340
- #B5.95
Tazamss
678.39
141 68
348.21
151.56
7799
1.525.97
3247
24.89
1,655.34
17.23
Raw Materinls
% of total
Valua Consumpton
B76.39 1.58
{575.93) .37
42.263.14 9842
{41,399.82) {58.63)
42,9384 100.00
(41,975.75) {100.00)

Previous Year
Quantity Valus
€1.375 982.84
129,354 136.18
2,485,000 1.082.57
2,204.59
2,875,820 13,731.86
16,974 54.98
15,950 432,85
28,277 361.84
434,687 6,064 .20
182,997 217587
78,330 1,032,687
- 143710
- 8,307.37
7.240,132 7.756.21
425,326 16587
- 754 44
41875.75
575.93
155.58
426.58
51.23
1,665.80
3067
472
228214
12.39
Others
val % of intal
e Consumption
141,66 0.50
(155.88) (D63}
23,996.97 99.41
(24,520.71) 99.37)
24,138.58 100.00
(24,676.5%) (100.00)




h) Remittance in foreign currency (NILY or to the mandate
banks on accounl of dividends o non residents

ti). Mumber of non residenl shareholders
{i). Number of shares hald by them
{iii}. Dividand { Rs in lacs)
{iv) Year to which the dividend relates

] Eamings In fereign axchange - Export of goods on FOB
basis.

43  Fgr X 1

A Hedged by way of forward exchange confracts:
n in In -
IC1CI Bank Ltd.-Bahrain
State Bank of Indla - Singapore
Berrewings - PCFC Logn
Yos Bank

b Not hedged:
Borrowings - ECB
ICIC! Bank Lid.-Bahrain
ICICI Bank Lid -Bahrain
State Bank of India - Singapors
Interast payable on ECBFCCB

Loan given

Export Recelvablas

Expont Racaivables

Advance from Customers

Advance from Cugtomers

Advance recoverable in cash or kind
Other raceivable

Balance wilh banks

44 |nformation under 165{4) of the Comoanies Acl, 2013

(&) Loans glven:
i) To a Jeinl Yanlure Company (interest free long term
warking capital advance)
i) To an Assoclate Company (in Foreign currehcy at
interest of 6%
iy In the form of unsecured short-term mter corporate
Deposits *

il tmants mada - as disclosed under Note. 12 & 14

(C) Guarantge glven: - ag disclosed in Note na.31(v)

* Notes:

All loans are given to unrelated entities at interest rales
ranging from 11% to 14%

All the loans are provided for business purposes of
resepctive antitias, repayable on demand with prepayment
option to the borrower.

(@) Sacuritiss given: - as disclosed in foot note to Note No.12

45 The Company is requirad to gpend a further sum of
Rs.71.88 lakhs lowards Corporate Sccial Rasponsibility
relating bo the financlal year 2014-15, as required under
sactlan 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. This is axpectad
o be spanl In the succeading financial year.

21.03.3018
18
14,260
011
201314
25,855.64
FLOXZNS
Cummency Amount (lacs)
uss -
uss -
uss 10.00
Uss 160.00
Us$ 4104
uss 131.25
uss 417
uss -
uss 119.35
EURO 008
USss 100,17
EURD 008
uss 3.24
uss 44.58
us$ 482
A8 on Glven during Repaid Balance as on
31.3.2014 the year duingtheysr 5132016
1.000.00 - - 1000.00
480.80 - 480,80 -
9,350.00 1382500 6,185.00 16,850.00

ANNUAL REPGRT 2034-15

21.03.2014
18
15,500

LR 4
2012-13

24,267 .84

20,2014

Ampunt [lacs)

$0.41
a2

166.00
24835
150.00

8.00
68.08

61.60

0.4
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i)

a1

The Company has entered inlg arangemants with certain
distileries and  bolting wnits in olher states far
manuf and keting of is awn IMFL brands. The
manufacture under the said arrangement, wherein each
party's obligations are stipulated, is carmed out undar it's
close supervigion. The markaling is entrely the
responeibiity of the Company and consequently the
Company is required 1o bear bad debts arising on salas
The Company is aisa required 1o ensure adequals finance
to the distlleries, whers required. Accordingly, it is
considerad appropriate  to  disclosa  the  following
Information (unaudited), as applicable to such activilies.

income from operations thraugh other distileries ( bottling
units reflects the net contribution from the sales made by
these Units and (s detailed as under

Grogs Sales
Net Sales
Cosl of Sales
Gross Profit
Expanses
Income

The balance due from distilleries undar the arangernent,
Rs 17424.63 lacs (Previous year Rs 29031.53 lacs) is
included under advances recoverable, This is on account
of the financing by the company of inventories,debtars
and other currant assets nel of current liabifilies on behalf
of the Units. Such advances include Rs 189286 lacs
{previous year Rs.1927 94 lacs) in respect of units which
are closed and considered good and recoverable. The
mansgament is taking slaps 10 recover the amount.

Pravious year figures have been re-grouped, wherever
necessary, to comespond 1o curment year figures.

Az par our report of evan date

For V. Sankar Alyar & Co.
Chartersd Accountants
KCAl Firm Regn, No. 109208 W

M. 5. Balachandran
Partner
Membarship No. 24282

Placa : New Dalhl
Dated : 22-05-2015

032015
121,056.62
48,032.44
32,857.52
16,175.12
3,352 67
1182215
For and on behalf of Board
Dilip K. Banthiya D, Lalit Khaitan
Chief Financlal Officer Chal & Managing Dir
Amit Manchanda Abhlshek Khaltan
Group Head - Lagal & Managing Director
Company Secretary
Nay K. Agarwal
President [Fl & A te} Dirgctors

BH22014

143 292,57
53.650.00
36,880 85
16,768.05

3,706 62
13,062.43
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